
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of February 6, 2023. 

2. Special City Council meeting of January 30, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

3. Hearing on a complaint issued to Cedar Star, Inc., d/b/a Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a second 
tobacco violation. 
 
a) Oral comments. 
 
b) Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a second tobacco 
violation regarding Bani's, 2128 College Street. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #3023, amending the Zoning Map by placing property located on Lots 5 and 6 of the 
Midway Business Park in the R-4, Multiple Unit Residentail Zoning District, pursuant to provisions of 
a Zoning Agreement, upon its third & final consideration. 

5. Pass Ordinance #3024, amending the Zoning Map by removing property generally described as Lots 
1-4 of Midway Second Addition from the R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning District, to the R-1, 
One & Two Unit Residential Zoning District, upon its third & final consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

6. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 6, 2023 relative to the 
following item: 
a) FY2024 Budget. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

7. Receive and file the City Council Special Standing Committee Meeting minutes of January 30, 2023 
relative to the following item: 
a) 6th & Main Intersection. 

8. Receive and file the minutes of the February 3, 2023 City Council Work Session - Joint Meeting with 
Legislators. 

9. Approve a proclamation recognizing February 24, 2023 as Jamaica Day. 

10. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Mike Mangin, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2028. 

11. Receive and file the 2022 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of 
Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing 
Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

12. Approve the application of Posh Smoke and Vape, 6322 University Avenue, Suite L, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

13. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

15. Resolution amending Resolution No. 22,901, approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement 
and authorizing and providing for the issuance of $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, 
Series 2022, and levying a tax to pay said Notes; Approval of Amendment to Tax Exemption 
Certificate.  

16. Resolution designating July 3, 2023 (9 a.m.-10 p.m.) as an additional day of use for consumer 
fireworks within the City limits. 

17. Resolution approving and adopting the HOME-American Rescue Plan (ARP) Allocation Plan and 
Annual Action Plan. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the Iowa Certified Local Government (CLG) 
2022 Annual Report of the Historic Preservation Commission to the State Historical Society of Iowa. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to the Subrecipient 
Agreement for Federally Funded Project with Refugee & Immigrant Voices in Action (RIVA), f/n/a 
Ethnic Minorities of Burma Advocacy and Resource Center (EMBARC), for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing Amendment #3 to the Entitlement Community Development 
Block Grant COVID-19 Program Contract with the Iowa Economic Development Authority (IEDA) 
relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting a Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction with the 
Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

22. Resolution approving and accepting five Warranty Deeds and one Quit Claim Deed, in conjunction 
with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

23. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of K&W Electric, Inc., in 
the amount of $728,796.05, being the only bid received for the Hudson Road & West Ridgeway 
Avenue Intersection Improvements Project. 

24. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson 
Contracting, Inc., in the amount of $735,520.00, being the only bid received for the Oak Park 
Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project. 

25. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting March 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project. 

26. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting March 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Street Construction 
Project. 

27. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting March 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the North Cedar Heights Area 
Reconstruction Project - Phase I. 

28. Resolution setting March 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to 
McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

29. Allow Bills and Claims for February 20, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

30. Executive Session to discuss Collective Bargaining per Iowa Code Section 20.17(3) as negotiating 
sessions, strategy meetings of public employers, mediation, and the deliberative process of 
arbitrators. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54137 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of January 17, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54138 - Rosemary Beach, 3018 Sage Road, commented on utilizing the Hotel/ Motel Tax  

for the addition of public restrooms downtown. 
 
  Jim Brown, 1004 Tremont Street, commented on the Paid-on-Call vs Public 

Safety Officer program and proposed public safety study. 
  
  Mayor Green responded to an inquiry by Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, 

regarding a personnel issue. 
 
  Mayor Green responded to a question by Whitney Smith, 2207 Hawthorne Drive, 

regarding the difference in two personnel issues. 
 
54139 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of January 23, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications and forms of contract & estimate of cost for the Hudson Road & 
West Ridgeway Avenue Intersection Improvements Project. It was then moved 
by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54140 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. Following a question by Rick Sharp, 1623 
Birch Street, and response by Wicke, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
54141 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,049, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Hudson Road & West Ridgeway Avenue Intersection Improvements 
Project, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Kruse, Schultz and 
Dunn, and responses by City Engineer Wicke, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,049 duly passed and adopted. 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

54142 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of January 23, 
2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications and forms of contract & estimate of cost for the Oak Park 
Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Ganfield that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54143 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
54144 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,050, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Hudson Road & West Ridgeway Avenue Intersection Improvements 
Project, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Ganfield, and 
response by City Engineer Wicke, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #23,050 duly passed and adopted. 

54145 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3023, 
amending the Zoning Map by placing property located on Lots 5 and 6 of the 
Midway Business Park in the R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning District, 
pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, 
deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54146 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3024, 

amending the Zoning Map by removing property generally described as Lots 1-4 
of Midway Second Addition from the R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning 
District, to the R-1, One & Two Unit Residential Zoning District, be passed upon 
its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, 
deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54147 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of January 17, 
2023 relative to the following item: 
a) FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

 Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

of members to Boards and Commissions:  
a) Julie Etheredge, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/26. 
b) Sally Timmer, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/26. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of December 2022. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Asian Fusion Vietnamese and Thai Cuisine, 5725 University Avenue, Special 
Class C retail alcohol - renewal  
b) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Chad's Pizza and Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Sakura Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar, 5719 University Avenue, Class C 
retail alcohol - renewal. 
e) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
f) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in 
ownership. 
g) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine – change 
in ownership. 
h) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in 
ownership. 
i) Kwik Spirits, 4116 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol – change in 
ownership. 
j) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C retail alcohol 
& outdoor service – 8-month permit. 
k) Great Walls, 2125 College Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
l) Hy-Vee Fast and Fresh, 6527 University Avenue, Class B retail alcohol – new. 
m) Pheasant Ridge  

Motion carried unanimously. 

54148 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,051, approving and authorizing execution of an Advertising 

Agreement with Lee Enterprises, Incorporated, d/b/a Courier Communications, 
relative to recruitment advertising. 

 Resolution #23,052, approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment 
to Professional Services Agreement with Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, LLC 
relative to replacement of the City's financial system. 

 Resolution #23,053, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with OPN Architects, Inc. relative to the Hearst 2.0 Master 
Plan Project. 

 Resolution #23,054, approving a PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District site 
plan for construction of a retail building at 930 Viking Road. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Resolution #23,055, approving and authorizing execution of one Owner 
Purchase Agreement and one Amended and Substituted Owner Purchase 
Agreement, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,056, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction 
with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,057, approving and authorizing execution of a License 
Agreement with Aureon Network Services relative to installing a fiber optic 
telecommunications system within the public right-of-way of West 27th Street 
near the Greenhill Road intersection. 

 Resolution #23,058, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project. 

 Resolution #23,059, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 4C to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for platting and engineering services relative to West Viking 
Road Industrial Park - Phase VI. 

 Resolution #23,060, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 10B to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for design services relative to the West Viking Road 
Reconstruction and Recreational Trail Infill Project.  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,051 through #23,060 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54149 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #23,061, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Terminal Leave of Absence, 
Resignation, and Mutual Release Agreement with John Bostwick relative to 
employment with the City, be adopted. Mayor Green read a section of Iowa Code 
regarding information allowed for discussion. It was then moved by deBuhr and 
seconded by Kruse to include an amendment to the document submitted by 
attorneys for Bostwick. Mayor Green read the amendment. Following questions 
by Councilmembers Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Schultz, and Dunn, Rick Sharp, 
1623 Birch Street, and Whitney Smith, 2207 Hawthorne Drive, and responses by 
Controller/City Treasurer Roeding, Finance & Business Operations Director 
Rodenbeck and City Attorney Rogers, the motion to amend carried 6-1, with 
Ganfield voting Nay. Following comments by Councilmember Ganfield, and 
comments in opposition to the agreement by Whitney Smith, Josh Wilson, 100 
East 2nd Steet, Rick Sharp, and Sharon Regenold, 108 Lilliput Lane, and 
comments in support of the agreement by Jim Brown, 1004 Tremont Street, and 
responses by Mayor Green, City Administrator Gaines, and Rodenbeck, and 
additional comments by Councilmembers Dunn, Kruse, Ganfield, Sires, and 
Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the original motion as amended and upon 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, 
Dunn, deBuhr. Nay: Ganfield, Sires, Schultz. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #23,061 duly passed and adopted. Mayor Green provided 
closing comments. 

54150 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,062, 
receiving and filing, and approving the plans, specifications and estimate of cost 
for the Highway 58 & Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project, be adopted. 
Following questions and comments by Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, and Josh 
Wilson, 100 East 2nd Street, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, 
Schultz, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #23,062 duly passed and adopted. 

54151 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
February 6, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, 
deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54152 -     Public Works Director Schrage responded to a request by Councilmember 

Ganfield regarding an update on QR code mapping downtown. 
 
54153 -     It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding to refer to the Public Works 

Committee a request for no parking on Bluebell Road. Following a question by 
Councilmember deBuhr, and response by Councilmember Ganfield, the motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
54154 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to the Public Works 

Committee a request to review snow removal practices and policies. Following a 
comment by Councilmember Sires, the motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 

 
54155 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to the Public Works 

Committee a request for a four-way stop at the Lone Tree Road and Center 
Street intersection. Councilmember Schultz explained the request. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Dunn and Kruse, and responses by Public Works 
Director Schrage and City Administrator Gaines, the motion carried 5-2, with 
Dunn and deBuhr voting Nay. 

 
54156 -     It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Public Works 

Committee a request to review pedestrian crosswalks for University Avenue and 
Center Street. Following comments by Councilmember Schultz, the motion 
carried 5-2, with Dunn and deBuhr voting Nay. 

 
54157 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to the Public Works 

Committee a request to review traffic patterns for student pick-up/drop-off at 
North Cedar, Aldrich, Orchard Hill, Southdale and other schools as needed. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Following comments by Councilmembers Schultz, Sires, deBuhr, Dunn, Ganfield, 
Harding, and Kruse, and responses by City Administrator Gaines and Mayor 
Green, the motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 

 
54158 -     It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Public Safety 

Committee Meeting on February 20, 2023 for Council committee members to 
discuss, draft and recommend to Council a request for proposal to be sent to 
firms capable of assessing our Public Safety Department. Following comments 
by Councilmember Ganfield, deBuhr, Dunn and Schultz, and Mayor Green, the 
motion carried 5-2, with Dunn and deBuhr voting Nay. 

 
    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole a review of Industrial Park guidelines and policies relative to qualifying for 
tax increment financing (TIF) incentives. The motion carried, 6-1 with Dunn 
voting Nay. 

 
54159 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:05 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JANUARY 30, 2023 

SPECIAL MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Special Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:04 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse (via videoconference), Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. 
 

54135 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive Session 
to discuss strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where 
litigation is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or 
disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that litigation per Iowa 
Code Section 21.5(1)(c) and to review or discuss records which are required or 
authorized by state or federal law to be kept confidential per Iowa Code Section 
21.5(1)(a). Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None.  
Motion carried. 

     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:04 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 9:08 P.M.   
   
54136 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the meeting be 

adjourned at 9:09 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
    __________________________________ 
  Kim Kerr, CMC, Administrative Supervisor 

10

Item 2.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:         

Bani’s       ORDER 

c/o Cedar Star, Inc.     ASSESSING PENALTY 

2128 College Street     SECOND VIOLATION 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613    (Assessment of Civil Penalty) 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

ON this ______ day of _______________, 2023, after a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council finds that based upon evidence submitted by the City 

Attorney's Office, the above-captioned permittee committed a second violation of Iowa 

Code Section 453A.2(1), selling, giving, or otherwise supplying any tobacco, tobacco 

products, or cigarettes to any person under eighteen years of age. 

THEREFORE, the Cedar Falls City Council hereby orders that a civil penalty of 

One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) be assessed against the above-captioned 

permittee.  This sanction will count as a second violation of Iowa Code Section 

453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(b). 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

11

Item 3.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:         

Bani’s       ORDER 

c/o Cedar Star, Inc.     ASSESSING PENALTY 

2128 College Street     SECOND VIOLATION 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613    (Assessment of Suspension) 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

ON this ______ day of _______________, 2023, after a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council finds that based upon evidence submitted by the City 

Attorney's Office, the above-captioned permittee committed a second violation of Iowa 

Code Section 453A.2(1), selling, giving, or otherwise supplying any tobacco, tobacco 

products, or cigarettes to any person under eighteen years of age. 

THEREFORE, the Cedar Falls City Council hereby orders that a thirty (30) day 

cigarette permit suspension be assessed against the above-captioned permittee effective 

__________________, 2023 [Future Date].  This sanction will count as a second 

violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 

453A.22(2)(b). 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

12

Item 3.



13

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: January 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Zoning Agreement – Midway Business Park 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

New Zoning Agreement - Midway Business Park 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Lucas Moore, Oak District LLC 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 5 & 6 Midway Business Park: Greenhill Circle 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted a request to amend the zoning restriction placed on Lots 5 and 6 of the 
Midway Business Park subdivision. This restriction only allows for the construction of 
professional service office buildings and the applicant wishes to establish a nursing home/senior 
assisted living facility on said lots. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the process of preparing an amendment to the zoning agreement it was discovered that there 
was an error in the legal description included in the original zoning agreement from 1994 so it 
did not accurately describe the same properties that were rezoned to R-4 at the time. Since this 
error nullifies that rezoning, the agreement, and any subsequent amendments, it is best to 
rescind the original agreement and draft a new one that includes the conditions that remain 
relevant today, specifically the use restrictions in the Midway Business Park. It is also necessary 
to properly rezone to R-4 as the original resolution to rezone used the same legal description as 
the agreement.  
  
The other two conditions of the original 1994 agreement have already been accomplished. 
Namely, Lovejoy Drive ends in a cul-de-sac, and four single family homes have been 
constructed on the four lots at the end of Lovejoy.  This effectively separates the residential 
neighborhood from the Midway Business Park, so no commercial traffic can flow through the 
neighborhood (see aerial image below). For reference, the minutes from the previous meeting 
are noted below. 
 

14

Item 4.



 
 
Aside from the issue of the legal description of the land this would apply to, no material facts 
regarding the request and staff’s analysis have changed. It should be noted that an amendment 
to the 1994 agreement was approved in 2018 which provided for a nursing home/senior 
assisted living use on lots 7 and 8. With the success of the initial facility, Oak District, the 
applicant would like to take the necessary steps with a new zoning agreement to allow a second 
similar assisted living facility on Lots 5 & 6. If this request is approved, only two lots within the 
Midway Business Park Subdivision will remain undeveloped. 
 
One important issue is that there are four single-family homes at the end of Lovejoy Drive (cul-
de-sac abutting the business park) that were zoned R-4 and were included in the 1994 
agreement to be restricted to single-family use. Since the conditions of the original 1994 
agreement have already been accomplished and the legal description did not entirely 
encompass those lots, the use restrictions may not be enforceable. The property is currently 
zoned R-4, High Density Residential. To ensure that multifamily and non-residential uses are 
not established in that single-family neighborhood counter to the intent of the original agreement 
(however unlikely), staff will be recommending rezoning these properties to R-1 to be consistent 
with the rest of the residential neighborhood.  Staff has reached out to these property owners to 
explain the situation and proposes to rezone their properties to R-1, so staff is bringing that 
forward as a separate rezoning case before Council. 
  

15

Item 4.



ANALYSIS 
To the north, the property abuts a City-owned lot that is used as a stormwater detention basin, 
to the east is the Oak District assisted living facility, to the south is First Security State Bank and 
to the west is an undeveloped lot currently owned by First Security State Bank. 
 
This request is unlike a typical rezoning request because the initial request restricted the usage 
of these two lots to professional office uses. The proposal is to execute a new zoning agreement 
to allow a use that is generally permitted in the R-4 district. All basic utility accommodations 
serve the property including sanitary sewer and a water main to each lot. The developer would 
utilize one connection and the other service connections will need to be abandoned at the 
developers cost. Vehicular access to the property is from Greenhill Circle.  
 
The two lots in question are 1.09 acres in area. The site plan submitted mirrors the previous 
development showing a 9,813 square foot building with 16 units and 11 parking spaces to serve 
the staff and visitors, as most residents are unable to drive. 
 
Based on the proposed development of Lots 5 and 6 in the Midway Business Park addition, staff 
supports this request to allow nursing homes and assisted living facilities in addition to 
professional offices by executing a new zoning agreement. The proposed use, assisted living, is 
allowed in the R-4 zoning district. Reviewing the case history of this zoning agreement and 
subsequent platting of the property, staff finds that this change to the zoning restrictions will be 
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. The one-story building is similar in height to 
nearby homes and subject to similar building setbacks. Use of the property for supportive 
housing is consistent with the intended purpose of the zone. The traffic to the subject properties 
will not affect the surrounding residential properties because the only access to these lots is 
from Greenhill Circle via Greenhill Road.  
 
The zoning agreement approved in 1994 and revised in 2018 will need to be rescinded and 
replaced by a new zoning agreement which accommodates the proposed assisted living facility. 
The new zoning agreement will only encompass the lots within the Midway Business Park and 
not the four single family lots at the end of Lovejoy. 
 
Two notices were mailed to the adjoining property owners regarding this zoning district 
amendment. Notice of these rezone considerations was published in the WCF Courier on 
December 7, 2022 and notice of Council’s hearing was published in the WCF Courier on 
January 6, 2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
At their December 14 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of RZ22-003, a new zoning agreement that encompasses the Midway 
Business Park and restricts the uses to professional offices, nursing homes, and assisted living 
facilities. As part of this action, the resolutions approving the 1994 agreement and the 2018 
amendment will be rescinded. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission also recommends approval of a proper rezoning of the 
Midway Business Park to R-4 utilizing the correct legal description. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

16

Item 4.



Introduction  
11/22/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a request to rezone 
property in Midway Business Park to R-4 with a new Zoning Agreement. Acting 
Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. 
He explained that staff brought forward a zoning agreement in September for this 
request and it was discovered through that process that there were some errors in 
the original legal description from the 1994 agreement. This consideration is more 
of a formality at this point since the commission previously voted in favor of the 
changes that the applicant has requested. At this time, staff proposes to replace the 
agreement as opposed to amending it, cleaning up provisions that have been 
fulfilled. Staff recommends setting a public hearing to consider a new zoning 
agreement that will encompass the Midway Business Park and restrict the uses to 
professional offices, nursing homes and assisted living facilities. The resolutions 
approving the 1994 agreement and the 2018 amendment will be rescinded. The 
new agreement will be brought forward at the public hearing. Staff also 
recommends setting a public hearing to consider a proper rezoning of the Midway 
Business Park to R-4 utilizing the correct legal description. 
 
Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve move the item forward for public hearing. 
Mr. Larson seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 
ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

Public Hearing 
12/14/2022 

The first item of business was a public hearing for a new zoning agreement 
in Midway Business Park. Acting Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. 
Sevy provided background information. He explained that the property sits 
east of Cedar Heights Drive and north of Greenhill Road and the applicant 
would like to build an assisted living facility on Lots 5 and 6 which isn’t 
permitted by the current zoning agreement. It is appropriate to execute a 
new zoning agreement and rezone to R-4 to update the zoning restriction 
and correct the legal description error discussed at the previous meeting. 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning and the new zoning agreement.  
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Grybovych seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Larson, Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 

 
Attachments: Location map 
  Lots where assisted living facility is proposed 
  Request Letter 
  Original Zoning Agreement 
  New Agreement 
  Rezone Ordinance 
   

17

Item 4.



Valley
High Park

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

â

â

â
â

â

â

â

Greenhill Dr

Mark Dr

Jodi Dr

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal Ct

Lovejoy Dr

Greenhill Cir

Cardinal Dr

Cal
lumCt

Greenhill Rd

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-1 R-4

C-2

R-1

R-2

RP

Cedar Falls City Council
January 17, 2023

Zoning Agreement update & Rezone to R-4
Midway Business Park
All properties on Greenhill Circle

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 3023 

 

AN ORDINANCE CONDITIONALLY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 7.49 ACRES OF LAND 

DESCRIBED HEREIN TO THE R-4 MULTIPLE RESIDENCE DISTRICT, AMENDING THE 

ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA ACCORDINGLY, AND ADOPTING THE 

CONDITIONAL ZONING AGREEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN 

 
WHEREAS, a rezoning from the R-1, Residential Zoning District to the R-4, Multiple 

Residence District was approved by City Ordinance No. 2080 on January 9, 1995, which 

ordinance contained a legal description that contained errors, such that the ordinance was 

not indicative of the property that was originally intended to be rezoned as per City records; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a Zoning Agreement was adopted by City Resolution No. 9798 on 

December 12, 1994 (hereinafter the “Previous Agreement”) which cited the same property legal 

description containing errors; and 

 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the Previous Agreement was approved by City Council 

Resolution No. 21,212 on August 6, 2018 (hereinafter the “Amendment”), which cited the same 

property description as in the Previous Agreement and amended the Previous Agreement to restrict 

the uses on Lots 7 and 8 of the Midway Business Park to professional offices, nursing homes, and 

senior assisted living facilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Owners of all property intended to be subject to the Previous Agreement are 

requesting another change to allow nursing homes and assisted living facilities, in addition to 

professional offices, on Lots 5 & 6 of the Midway Business Park; and 
 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code 414.5, as amended, provides that a City Council may impose 

reasonable conditions on granting an applicant's rezoning request, over and above existing regulations, 

in order to satisfy public needs directly caused by the requested change; and 

 

WHEREAS, Owners all agree that a New Zoning Agreement, to replace the Previous Agreement 

and the Amendment, be executed which reflects the intent of the Owners to restrict the uses on properties 

within the Midway Business Park to nursing homes, assisted living facilities and professional offices only, 

and that all other provisions of the Previous Agreement and Amendment have been satisfied; and  

 

WHEREAS, under case number RZ22-003, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has recommended approval of a rezoning of the property described below to R-4 

Multiple Residence District, subject to the New Zoning Agreement that restricts use of the properties to 

29

Item 4.



professional offices, nursing homes, and assisted living facilities, to ensure compatibility with the 

adjacent residential neighborhood (hereinafter the “New Zoning Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the City to rezone the property 

described below to R-4, Multiple Residence District, pursuant to the New Zoning Agreement 

attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein as fully as though set out in this ordinance, 

which conditions are hereby imposed upon the property owners, their successors and assigns, and 

upon the real estate described below, and shall run with the land; and 

  

WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is incorporated 

into and made a part of said Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such hearing 

held on the proposed amendment.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby added to the R-4, 

Multiple Residence District: 

 

Legal Description: 

MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-4, Multiple Residence 

District, pursuant to a New Zoning Agreement that has been made a part of this ordinance, and the 

amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

Section 3. That City Council Resolution No. 9798 and City Council Resolution No. 

21,212 are hereby rescinded.  

  

INTRODUCED:    January 17, 2023  

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  January 17, 2023  

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  February 6, 2023  

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

         _________________________ 

         Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

30

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: January 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezone Midway 2nd Addition 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone from R-4 to R-1 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition (3019-3028 Lovejoy Dr) (RZ22-005) 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The zoning agreement that restricts the use of these lots to single family in the R-4 District is in 
the process of being rescinded and replaced as errors were discovered in the legal description 
while updating the restrictions in that agreement. The agreement has served its purpose in the 
establishment of single-family uses, and it makes more sense at this time to regulate these lots 
the same as the rest of the residential neighborhood. To ensure that the use of these lots 
remains consistent with the residential neighborhood, staff proposes that they be rezoned from 
R-4 to R-1. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the process of preparing an amendment to the zoning agreement it was discovered that there 
was an error in the legal description included in the original zoning agreement from 1994 so it 
did not accurately describe the same properties that were rezoned to R-4 at the time. Since this 
error nullifies the agreement and any subsequent amendments, it is best to rescind the original 
agreement and draft a new one that includes the conditions that remain relevant today, 
specifically the use restrictions in the Midway Business Park. 
  
The other two conditions of the original 1994 agreement have already been accomplished. 
Namely, Lovejoy Drive ends in a cul-de-sac, and four single family homes have been 
constructed on the four lots at the end of Lovejoy.  This effectively separates the residential 
neighborhood from the Midway Business Park, so no commercial traffic can flow through the 
neighborhood (see aerial image below).  
 

31

Item 5.



 
 
The four residential properties at the end of Lovejoy Drive are currently zoned R-4, High Density 
Residential. To ensure that multifamily and non-residential uses are not established in that 
single-family neighborhood counter to the intent of the original agreement (however unlikely), 
staff is recommending rezoning these properties to R-1 to be consistent with the rest of the 
residential neighborhood.  Staff has reached out to these property owners to explain the 
situation and discuss rezoning their properties to R-1. 
 
ANALYSIS 
By virtue of the errors in the legal description of the original zoning agreement, the enforceability 
of that agreement is in question. The city is in the process of rescinding and replacing the 
agreement which leaves two options: 

1. Include the residences in the new zoning agreement and continue to regulate the 
residences in that way, or 

2. Rezone the residences to R-1 and regulate them the same as the adjacent homes in the 
neighborhood, which is zoned R-1. 

 
Since, for some time these have not been considered part of the Midway Business Park but an 
addition to the Midway Subdivision, the latter option appears to be more appropriate. Also, 
rezoning to R-1 better defines the rights of the property owners. 
 
Worth noting is that there are platted 20-foot front setbacks that will continue to apply to these 
properties. All other aspects of R-1 District standards will apply.  
 
MINIMUM CRITERIA FOR REZONE 
The following criteria are the minimum consideration for a rezone: 
 

32

Item 5.



1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 

Yes, these residences are slated for Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Map 
 

2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  
Yes, these are developed lots and each residence is connected to utilities. 

 
3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
Yes, the lots are on a cul-de-sac at the end of Lovejoy Drive.    

 
Notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on September 6, 2022 regarding the zoning 
agreement amendment. Additional notice was mailed on November 4, 2022 regarding the 
change of course to rescind and replace the agreement. Lastly, notice was mailed on November 
16th, 2022 regarding this rezone from R-4 to R-1. 
 
Notice of public hearing regarding these rezone considerations was published in the WCF 
Courier on December 7, 2022 and notice of Council’s hearing was published in the WCF Courier 
on January 6, 2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this proposal and unanimously recommends 
approval of a rezoning of the subject properties from R-4 to R-1.  
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Introduction  
11/22/2022 

The next item for consideration a rezoning request for Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd 
Addition. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided 
background information. He explained that Lots 1-4 were part of the original 
agreement discussed in the previous item. One of the stipulations was that both 
streets would end in a cul-de-sac and these lots would be restricted to residential 
uses and be zoned R-4. Because R-4 has several other uses that are not 
considered residential, the zoning would need to be changed to R-1 for these lots 
so as to be regulated the same as the other residential parcels in the neighborhood. 
Staff recommends setting a public hearing to consider rezoning the subject 
properties from R-4 to R-1.  
 
 Mr. Larson thanked the developer for bringing a great project to the area and 
apologized for any unplanned delays. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to move the item to public hearing. Ms. Moser seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

33

Item 5.



Public Hearing 
12/14/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a public hearing 
regarding a rezoning of Lots 1-4 in the Midway 2nd Addition. Acting Chair 
Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. 
He explained that the previous rezoning to R-4 with an associated zoning 
agreement was intended to encompass a larger area that included the 
Lovejoy cul-de-sac. However, the legal description in the previous zoning 
action years ago has an error, so the properties need to be rezoned with the 
correct legal description. Since these four lots are at the end of a cul-de-sac 
that does not connect to the Midway Business Park and have already been 
developed with single family homes, the City is proposing to rezone these 
lots to R-1, so the zoning is consistent with the rest of the residential 
neighborhood.  
 
Ms. Moser made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Larson, Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 

 
Attachments: Location map 
  Rezoning Ordinance 
   
   

34

Item 5.



Gree
n

Cr
ee

k

Valley
High Park

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

â

â
â

â

â

â

â

â

Ch
ad

wic
k R

d

Cardinal Ct

Leg
acy

 Ln

Lovejoy Dr

Valley High Dr
Cardinal Dr

Cal
lumCt

Greenhill Dr

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-1

R-4

R-1

C-2

R-1

R-2
MU

A-1

RP

Cedar Falls City Council
January 17, 2023

Rezone from R-4 to R-1
Lots 1 through 4, Midway 2nd Addition
3019, 3020, 3027, 3028 Lovejoy Dr.

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

35

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 3024 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 1.44 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, 

REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE R-4, MULTIPLE RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND 

ADDING IT TO THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately 1.44 acres of property from R-4, Multiple Residence 

District to R-1, Residence District, more specifically described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning (Case #RZ22-005) is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Cedar Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the property described below shall be removed from the R-4, Multiple Residence District 

and placed in the R-1, Residence District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby removed from 

the R-4, Multiple Residence District and added to the R-1, Residence District: 
 

Legal Description 

MIDWAY SECOND ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1, Residence 

36

Item 5.



District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, as amended. 

 

  

INTRODUCED:     January 17, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   January 17, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   February 6, 2023   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

37

Item 5.



  
 
 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

February 6, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:50 p.m. on February 6, 2023, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 
Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City 
Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance & Business 
Operations Committee Agenda, FY2024 Budget and introduced the Finance & Business Operations 
Director, Jennifer Rodenbeck. Director Rodenbeck gave an overview of the budget process: 

October/November, departments submit budget requests to finance; November/December, City 
Council holds goal setting that outlines budget goals; December, TIF certification; 
December/January, review and approve CIP; January, Black Hawk County certifies valuation & 
Finance revenues; February/March, Public Hearings. Director Rodenbeck explained a SSB 
1056 (Senate File 181 & House Bill 120) are affecting the schedule. Director Rodenbeck 
reviewed valuations, multi-residential/commercial/residential rollback, assessed property 
valuation, backfill funding, and business property tax reimbursement. Director Rodenbeck 
explained Cedar Falls is over 78% residential. Director Rodenbeck reviewed the preliminary 
calculations based on the new legislation with a tax rate of around $11.65. Hotel/Motel tax is 
budgeted at $900,000; this supports our parks, cultural, and tourism. Director Rodenbeck gave 
an overview on outside agency funding, those agencies included: Cedar Falls Economic 
Development, Grown Cedar Valley, block grant, band, and MET. Other budget factors that were 
discussed included: $.27 of emergency levy was not utilized (may change depending on 
valuation effects), FY24 projects in the CIP budget, and the EMA levy. Director Rodenbeck 
explained that employee salary increases will be between 3%-5% in accordance with the union 
agreement, new positions were outlined at goal setting for FY24, IPERS remained the same for 
FY24, and the 411 Pension decreased from 23.90% to 22.98% for FY24. Director Rodenbeck 
stated the following FY24 budget revenue challenges include backfill continuing to be phased 
out, new business tax credit, changes to TIF and continue to watch residential rollback. Director 
Rodenbeck stated the following FY24 budget challenges for expenses include health insurance 
costs, personnel costs, inflation effects and construction costs. Looking forward the City has 
saved up capital replacement funds for capital projects, continues to save the TIF release for 
future economic development and the $.27 of emergency levy that could be utilized if there’s a 
significant drop in residential rollback. Director Rodenbeck reviewed the updated tentative 
budget schedule opened for questions from Council. Councilmembers discussed MET funding, 
EMA levy, city cuts, Cedar Falls’ residential distribution and how we compare to other cities. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 6:23 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

38

Item 6.



  
 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING, STANDING COMMITTEE 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

January 30, 2023 
 

The meeting of the Standing Committee met at City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on January 30, 2023, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 
Harding, Daryl Kruse via videoconference, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz and Dave Sires. Staff 
members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Public Works Committee: 
Chair Schultz called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Public Works 
Committee, 6th & Main Intersection and introduced Public Works Director, Chase Schrage. Director 
Schrage gave the history of council action pertaining to the 6th & Main Street intersection. Director 
Schrage introduced Aaron Moniza, Foth Senior Client Manager. Mr. Moniza displayed the current 
design of the traffic signal at 6th & Main Street; then gave a review of the 4-leg roundabout and 3-leg 
roundabout concepts and options. Mr. Moniza showed examples of 145’ diameter and an 86’ 
diameter roundabout. Mr. Moniza displayed the level of service, the life cycle cost comparison for the 
three options and additional construction costs, right-of-way parcels impacted, user cost savings, 
and loss of Library parking stalls. Mr. Moniza stated the consultant’s recommendation is still the 4-
leg roundabout that includes improved safety, better traffic operation, user cost savings, no impact to 
access and minimal loss of parking. Mr. Moniza concluded with the cost to implement the new 
intersection design that included redesign costs, right-of-way acquisitions, existing right-of-way 
agreements, schedule impacts and contractor costs. Councilmembers discussed the redesign that 
included 500 hours; it was stated there are hundreds of documents to update in the plans, these 
hours would only be for the Foth team to update and doesn’t include the other entities in this project. 
Councilmembers also discussed Library access, railroad tracks, cost of switching to a roundabout 
when the signal was moving forward as voted on and concerns with roundabouts. Chair Schultz 
called for public comments. Lexi Heath on behalf of Farmers State Bank, discussed concerns with 
the roundabout. Susan Whitson on behalf of First Bank, discussed concerns with the roundabout. 
Kelly Stern on behalf of the Cedar Falls Library, discussed concerns with the roundabout. Bob 
Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, discussed concerns on the cost, construction timeline, councils 
review after approval in January 2022, and taxpayer money. Councilmember Harding read 
correspondence from Casey’s, stating their concerns with the roundabout.  
It was motioned by Harding and seconded by Dunn to continue the 6th & Main Street Intersection as 
planned with the traffic signal. The motion was put to vote. Ave: deBuhr, Dunn, Ganfield, Harding, 
Shultz, and Sires; Nay: Kruse.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, CMC, Administrative Supervisor 

39

Item 7.



CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION –  
JOINT MEETING WITH LEGISLATORS 

Public Safety Center  
February 3, 2023 

 
The City Council held a joint meeting with local legislators at 2:00 p.m. on February 3, 
2023, to discuss the 2023 legislative session.  The following persons were in 
attendance:  Mayor Rob Green; Council Members Gil Schultz, Simon Harding, Dustin 
Ganfield, Dave Sires, and Kelly Dunn; Noah Hackbart, UNI Student Liaison, Local 
Legislators Eric Giddens, Bob Kressig, and Derek Wulf; City Lobbyists Tom Cope and 
Jon Murphy; staff members Ron Gaines, Jennifer Rodenbeck, Lisa Roeding, Craig 
Berte, Stephanie Sheetz, and Kevin Rogers; Waterloo Cedar Falls Courier 
representative Andy Milone. 

Mayor Green called the meeting to order, and introductions were made.  

Tom Cope outlined the various 2023 legislation of interest to the City of Cedar Falls.  
There was discussion on the various topics.  The Mayor also noted of interest will be the 
legislation regulating the sale of fireworks and legislation related to EMA.  There was 
also discussion about local control and realignment of the State departments. Lastly, 
there was discussion about University of Northern Iowa and information about attending 
the UNI Day at the Capitol which is set for February 14, 2023.   

The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 pm.    

 

 

40

Item 8.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: February 14, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Proclamation Requests 

 REF: (a) CFD 1117.22: Council Policy – Official City Proclamations 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I am enclosing the following proclamation 

request(s) for Council consideration and approval:  

a. Jamaica Day – Friday, February 24, 2023 

2. Please contact me with any questions.  

  

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Communications Specialist 

### 

 

41

Item 9.



 

CITY COUNCIL AND MAYOR 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 
  

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Jamaica Day was first recognized in 2002 and is an annual celebration 

recognizing the nation’s unique aspects and contributions to the world;  

WHEREAS, this national holiday is celebrated on a Friday in February each year, by those of 

Jamaican descent, with activities including poetry readings, musical presentations, 

traditional dances, and reenactments of folk tales; and 

WHEREAS, in 2022, the Western Home Communities embarked on ambitious program to 

provide workforce training and experiences to Jamaican citizens in the professional fields of 

culinary arts, hospitality, and elder care; and 

WHEREAS, these interns are working and residing among us here in Cedar Falls, and are 

bravely adapting to a climate much unlike their Caribbean homeland; and 

WHEREAS, these participants merit recognition and celebration by the community, in 

keeping with our welcoming spirit and genuine Iowa hospitality;  

NOW, THEREFORE I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, acting in the name of the 

Cedar Falls City Council, do hereby proclaim February 24, 2023 as  

JAMAICA DAY 
 

 in the City of Cedar Falls, and I encourage all citizens to appreciate and celebrate Jamaican 

culture, and to share in celebrations and offer hospitality to the Western Home 

Communities’ Jamaican interns who are calling Cedar Falls home for the duration of their 

Western Home Communities internships.  

        Signed this 21st day of February, 2023. 

 

______________________________________                                                                                 
MAYOR ROBERT M.  GRE EN  

42

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: February 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Board of Adjustment Re-Appointment – Mr. Michael Mangin 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §26-59: Board of Adjustment 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference 

(a), I hereby re-appoint Mr. Michael Mangin to Board of Adjustment for a five-

year term ending on March 31, 2028.   Mr. Mangin was originally appointed to 

the board on June 9, 2018. 

 

2. Mr. Mangin has satisfactorily met attendance requirements and is an active 

participant on the board. 

 

3. Please contact me with any questions about this appointment. 

 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

43

Item 10.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 
 
  

   

 

 

 
 
  
  
 
     TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

DATE: February 13, 2023 

 RE: Annual Reports of Boards and Commissions for 2022 

 

 
Attached you will find summaries of agenda items in 2022 for the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental 

Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, the Housing Commission, and the Cedar Falls 

Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee.  

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviews and makes recommendations to the City Council 

on all types of land use matters within the community. The Commission is comprised of nine 

members appointed by the Mayor and approved by the City Council. The Planning and Zoning 

Commission reviews numerous requests each year, including requests for rezoning, subdivision 

plats, site plans for development projects, and street vacations. The Commission also reviews 

and makes recommendations regarding changes to the Comprehensive Plan and zoning code 

amendments. As the Commission meets twice each month, requests for Commission review are 

likewise accepted twice per month. Planning & Community Services Division staff develops staff 

reports and recommendations for the Commission and coordinates the Planning and Zoning 

Commission agendas and meetings. 

 

In 2022 the Commission considered a number of residential subdivisions, including final plats of 

Wild Horse 5th and 6th Additions, revisions to West Fork preliminary plat, Western Home 

Communities 10th Addition preliminary and final plats, final plat for Terraces at West Glen, and 

the preliminary plat for Hidden Pines. Other projects included approval of a site plan and minor 

plat for the Cove at Spruce Hills, a condominium development in the Heritage Hills 

neighborhood and approval of a site plan for a new Veridian Credit Union along Brandilynn 

Boulevard. City Council requested several zoning amendments to the Downtown Character 

District, and the Commission responded by approving amendments to the parking requirements 

and to the site plan review process. A text amendment to allow daycare uses in the M-1 

44

Item 11.



Industrial District was also approved. A plan and plat for the expansion of the City’s West Viking 

Road Industrial Park was reviewed and approved.  

 

In addition to the 2022 Planning & Zoning Commission Annual Report and attendance record, a 

summary of the land use permits that were issued during the year is attached. The summary 

provides insight into the smaller projects happening in the community, which have continued to 

increase each year.  In 2022, the number of permits processed was over 1100.   

 

Board of Adjustment 

The Board of Adjustment is empowered by State law to consider variances and special 

exceptions from the terms of the City Zoning Ordinance. The Board is asked to carefully 

consider the evidence presented at the hearing and weigh whether there is sound justification to 

allow deviation from the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. This is an autonomous body with quasi-

judicial powers, whose members are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the City Council. 

Decisions by the Board can be appealed to District Court. The 7-member Board considers each 

request for a variance or special exception on its own merits. Requests for variances are rare, 

but many of those received relate to development in the floodplain so the careful scrutiny by the 

Board of Adjustment is helpful in allowing reasonable use of flood-prone properties, while 

ensuring that the goals of flood protection and community safety are met.  Planning & 

Community Services Division staff prepares staff reports and recommendations to the Board 

and coordinates Board of Adjustment agendas and meetings.  

 

There were no petitions for variances or special exceptions during 2022, so the Board did not 

meet.   

 

Historic Preservation Commission 

The Historic Preservation Commission was established by the City Council in 2011. The 

Commission reviews policies and programs of the city related to historic preservation.  Their 

primary objectives are to maintain an inventory of historic resources of Cedar Falls, to educate 

the public on matters related to the history of Cedar Falls, and to be a voice for historic 

preservation. 

 

The Commission held 10 meetings in 2022. The Commission hosted a very successful 

educational event in August, a walking tour of the historic “Lawn City” Neighborhood, with 

homes along Washington and Clay Streets between 8th and 12th Streets featured. Over 100 

people attended. Commission members and staff provided historical information about the 

homes with several of the homeowners coming out to meet attendees and provide colorful 

anecdotes about their homes. The Commission will be considering a similar tour event near 

Seerley Park in 2023.  

 

Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals 

The Group Rental Committee was created to consider whether new rental applications 

requesting higher levels of occupancy (3, 4, or 5 individuals aged 18 years or older) are 

45

Item 11.



appropriate to the property and neighborhood. The Group Rental Committee is comprised of the 

Planning & Community Services Manager, the Building Official, and the Fire Chief. The 

Committee meets on a regular basis when applications for new single-unit dwelling or duplex 

rentals are received or when rentals are changing ownership. The Group Rental Committee has 

limited authority to approve higher levels of occupancy, so applicants have the option to appeal 

those decisions. The Board of Rental Housing Appeals was created to review all appeals from 

the decisions of the Group Rental Committee and other appeals related to rental properties. 

Staff provides analysis and recommendation to the BRHA based on the characteristics of the 

site and carrying capacity of the property. The Board is comprised of seven citizens appointed 

by the Mayor and approved by City Council. The Board meets as needed. The 2022 Annual 

Report of Activities for the Board of Rental Housing Appeals is attached.  

 

Housing Commission 

The Cedar Falls Housing Commission is comprised of seven members appointed by the Mayor 

and approved by the City Council. The Commission acts as an advisory board to the City 

Council. Their role is to consider special projects for meeting the housing needs of low-income 

families, elderly and handicapped persons. They review projects and programs funded through 

the federal Community Development Block Grant awarded to Cedar Falls from the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  They also hear matters related to the 

City’s Housing Choice Voucher Program, which is a rental assistance program also funded with 

federal funds. In 2022 City Council tasked the Housing Commission with furthering the Council 

goals related to housing as recommended by the Racial Equity Taskforce. Details of the 

Housing Commission activities in 2022 are listed in the attached summary report. 

 

Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Committee 

This Advisory Committee is a fifteen member volunteer group that meets monthly. The 

Committee’s mission is to improve the quality of life in Cedar Falls through increased 

opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable means of transportation, physical activity, 

and recreation. The Committee has focused on the essential elements, five categories known as 

the “Five E’s”, being Engineering, Education, Encouragement, Enforcement, and Evaluation. 

One of the major accomplishments of the Committee was working with City staff to complete a 

significant update to the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan.  The 2022 Annual Report of Activities is 

attached for your review. 

 

 

46

Item 11.



 

 
1 

CEDAR FALLS PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Annual Summary 

2022 
 
 

January 12, 2022 – NO MEETING 
 
 

January 26, 2022 
 
1. Zoning Text Amendment – Amend CD-DT to eliminate shared parking requirements (TA22-001)

 .............................................................................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
2. Zoning Text Amendment – Amend CD-DT to increase parking requirements (TA22-001) ..........  
  .............................................................................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
 

February 9, 2022 
 
1. Zoning Text Amendment – Amend CD-DT to eliminate shared parking requirements (TA22-001)

 .......................................................................................................................... DISAPPROVED. 
 
2. Zoning Text Amendment – Amend CD-DT to increase parking requirements (TA22-

001) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
 

February 23, 2022 
 
1. Site Plan Review (Case #SP22-001) Midway Drive Storage Units ......................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Zoning Text Amendment – Daycare Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District (TA22-

002) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 .............................................................................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 

March 9, 2022 
 

1. Zoning Text Amendment – Daycare Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District (TA22-
002) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
2. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge 

Development ................................................................................................................................ 
 ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 

47

Item 11.



 

 
2 

3. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-
004). ............................................................................................................................................. 
 ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
4. RP Site Plan Review – The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #SP21-

013) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
5. MU Master Plan Amendment for Pinnacle Prairie Development (Western 

Homes) ......................................................................................................................................... 
 ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
 

March 23, 2022 
 
1. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge Development ............................ DEFERRED. 
 
2. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-004) .................. DEFERRED. 
 
3. RP Site Plan Review – The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #SP21-013) ..................... DEFERRED. 
 
4. MU Master Plan Amendment for Pinnacle Prairie Development (Western Homes) APPROVED. 
   
5. Zoning Text Amendment – P&Z review of site plans in the CD-DT(TA22-003) INTRODUCTION 

OF PETITION FROM COUNCIL 
 
 

April 13, 2022 
 
1. Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan ......................................................................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat (Case #FP22-

001) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
3. Minor Plat for The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #MP22-001) ................................... APPROVED. 
 
4. RP Site Plan Review – The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #SP21-013) ..................... APPROVED. 
 
5. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge Development ............................ DEFERRED. 
 
6. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-004) .................. DEFERRED. 
 
 

April 27, 2022 – NO MEETING 
 
 

48

Item 11.



 

 
3 

May 11, 2022 
 
1. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge Development ............................ DEFERRED. 
 
2. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-004) .................. DEFERRED. 
 
3. Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat (FP22-001)............................................ APPROVED. 
 
 
 
 

May 25, 2022 
 
1. West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Final Plat (FP22-003)  .......................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Minor Revisions to the Preliminary Plat for West Fork Crossing (PP22-003) .......... APPROVED. 
 
3. Zoning Text Amendment – P&Z review of certain site plans in the CD-DT (TA22-

003). ............................................................................................................................................. 
 .............................................................................. DISCUSSION AND SET PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 

June 8, 2022 
 
1. Rezoning – 2209 N. Union Road (Martyr’s Retreat) (RZ22-002) ..........  SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
2. Zoning Text Amendment – P&Z review of certain site plans in the CD-DT (TA22-

003) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
 

June 22, 2022 
 
1. Rezoning – 2209 N. Union Road (Martyr’s Retreat property) (RZ22-002)............... APPROVED. 
 
 

July 13, 2022 
 

1. HWY-1 District Site Plan – Veridian Credit Union (SP22-007) ................................ APPROVED. 
 
2. Preliminary and Final Plats – Western Home Communities 10th Addition (PP22-001 and FP22-

002) ...................................................................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 

 
July 27, 2022 

 

49

Item 11.



 

 
4 

1. Preliminary and Final Plats – Western Home Communities 10th Addition (PP22-001/FP22-
002) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
 

August 10, 2022 
 

1. Zoning Text Amendment – P&Z review of certain site plans in the CD-DT (TA22-
003) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ......... DISCUSSION OF REVISED PETITION FROM CITY COUNCIL, SET PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

August 24, 2022 
 
1. Zoning Text Amendment – P&Z review of certain site plans in the CD-DT (TA22-003) 

 ..................................................................................................................................................... 
 .................................................. REVISED PETITION FROM CITY COUNCIL DISAPPROVED. 

 
2. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – New duplex, 1224 W. 20th St. (DR22-001) 

 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
 

September 14, 2022 
 

1. Rezoning (Amendment to Zoning Agreement) –Lots 5 & 6 Midway Business Park (RZ22-003) 
  .............................................................................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
2. Zoning Text Amendment – Petition from City Council to Amend Parking Requirements in the 

Downtown Character District (TA22-004) .............................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
 

September 28, 2022 
 
1. Rezoning (Amendment to Zoning Agreement) –Lots 5 & 6 Midway Business Park (RZ22-003) ..  
   ............................................................................................................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Zoning Text Amendment – Petition from City Council to Amend Parking Requirements in the 

Downtown Character District (TA22-004) .......................................................... DISAPPROVED. 
 
3. Partial Easement Vacation – 3718 Apollo Street (VAC22-001)  .............................. APPROVED. 
 
4. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – New garage (DR22-002) ...... APPROVED. 
 
 

October 12, 2022 
 
1. Final Plat – Terraces at West Glen Second Addition (FP22-005) ........................... APPROVED. 

50

Item 11.



 

 
5 

 
2. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – Façade changes (DR2-

003) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
3. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – New garage (DR22-004) ...... APPROVED. 
 
 

October 26, 2022 – NO MEETING 
 
 

November 9, 2022 – NO MEETING (Lack of Quorum) 
 
 

November 22, 2022 
 
1. Final Plat – Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition (FP22-004) ........................................ APPROVED. 
 
2. Rezoning to R-4 with New Zoning Agreement – Midway Business Park (RZ22-

003) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 .............................................................................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
3. Rezoning to R-1 – Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition (RZ22-005) .......... SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
4. Site Plan Review - Tri-plex on Lot 4, Hanna Park Commercial Addition (SP22-

012) .............................................................................................................................................. 
 ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
December 14, 2022 

 
1. Rezoning to R-4 with New Zoning Agreement – Midway Business Park (RZ22-

003) ............................................................................................................................................. .
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
2. Rezoning to R-1 – Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition (RZ22-005) ............................ APPROVED. 
 
3. Site Plan Review - Tri-plex on Lot 4, Hanna Park Commercial Addition (SP22-

012). ............................................................................................................................................ .
 ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
4. Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan ......................................................... .APPROVED. 
 
5. Preliminary Plat – Hidden Pines (PP21-006) ........................ CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

December 28, 2022 
 

51

Item 11.



 

 
6 

1. Preliminary Plat – Hidden Pines (PP21-006) ........................................................... APPROVED. 

52

Item 11.



2022 Planning & Zoning Commission Attendance 
 
Chair: Brad Leeper  
Vice Chair: Dave Hartley  
 

 1/12 1/26 2/9 2/23 3/9 3/23 4/13 4/27 5/11 5/25 6/8 6/22 
Mid-year 

tally 
7/13 7/27 8/10 8/24 9/14 9/28 10/12 10/26 11/9 11/22 12/14 12/28 

Total 
Ratio 

% 
Attend 

Crisman 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

X X X O X X 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

X X X X 9/10 X X X X X X X 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 

N
O

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 (
la

c
k

 o
f 

q
u

o
ru

m
) X X X 19/20 95% 

Grybovych  X X O X O X X X X O 7/10 O X X X X X X X X X 16/20 80% 

Hartley X X X X X X O X X X 9/10 X O X X O X X X S X 16/20 80% 

Holst X X O X X X X O X X 8/10 X A X X X X X R R R 14/17 82% 

Larson X X O O X X X X X X 8/10 X X O X X X X X X A 16/20 80% 

Leeper X X X X X X X X X O 9/10 X X X X X O X O X O 16/20 80% 

Lynch X O X X X X X X X X 9/10 X X X X O X X O X X 17/20 85% 

Moser X O X X X X O X X O 7/10 X X X X X X X X X X 17/20 85% 

Saul X X X X X X X X X X 10/10 O O X X O X X R R R 14/17 82% 

 
X – Indicates Present 
O – Not Present 

NA – Not Appointed 
R – Resign 
A – Abstain 
S – Sick 

 
 

53

Item 11.



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
Annual Summary 

2022 
 
January 18, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
February 15, 2022 – No Meeting  
 
March 15, 2022 – N0 Meeting 
 
April 19, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
May 17, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
June 21, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
July 19, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
August 16, 2022– No Meeting 
 
September 20, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
October 18, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
November 15, 2022 – No Meeting   
 
December 20, 2022 – No Meeting  
 
 
Chair: Mike Mangin 
Vice Chair: Jennifer Rasmussen 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54

Item 11.



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2022THROUGH DECEMBER 2022 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

2
2
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
2
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
2
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

2
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
2
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
2

2
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
2

2
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
2
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0
2

2
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Beach / / / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

Lang / / / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

Mangin / / / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

Miller / / / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

Rasmussen / / / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

Sorensen / / / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

Hibben * * / / / / / / / / / / 0/0 N/A 

 
*Hibben appointed to the Board in February 2022 

 
X =  Present 

O =  Not Present 

/       =  No Meeting 

55

Item 11.



CEDAR FALLS HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
2022 Annual Summary.  

 
January 2022 
No meeting due to lack of a quorum. 

  
February 08, 2022 

 Public attendees shared concerns about West Gym on the UNI campus  
 Update: Seerley House on UNI campus was chosen to be on the 

endangered list by Preservation Iowa. 
 Commission identified and discussed the timeline for two educational 

events including a walking tour within Overman Park Neighborhood and a 
presentation about historical assets in the College Hill Neighborhood. 

 Commission reviewed and selected four winners of the Scavenger Hunt 
educational project. 

 
March 08, 2022 
 

 Updates on the Overman Park Neighborhood project and the College Hill 
Neighborhood project. 

 Commission discussed the recent listing of Mennonite Church property for 
sale. Staff updated that there are ongoing talks with different people about 
possibly doing adaptive reuse of the building but there are no concrete 
plans yet. 

 Commission elected Julie Etheredge as Chair and Sally Timmer as the 
Vice Chair for the commission.   

 
April 12, 2022 

 A public attendee shared concerns about the history of Seerley House 
which is at risk of being torn down and also discussed information on the 
Mausoleum at the Greenwood Cemetery with the commission members. 

 Commission shared updates on the Overman Park Neighborhood walking 
tour project anticipated in July.  

 The commission discussed recent findings of historical information about 
the UNI campus, which will allow people to observe the history on campus 
and spread educational awareness in the community. 
 

May 10, 2022 

 A public attendee shared the certificate from the mayor declaring the 
month of May to be Historic Preservation month and shared updates on 
the Seerley House. 

 The commission discussed specifics of the upcoming “Lawn City 
Neighborhood walking tour” event and discussed ideas for designing the 
poster and invite.  

 Commission inquired about the timing of the possible appointment of new 
commissioners.  

56

Item 11.



 
June 14, 2022 

 A public attendee shared an idea with the commission about working on 
getting plaques or signs for historically significant buildings or areas 
through grant funding.  

 Commission discussed the specifics of the Lawn City Neighborhood 
walking tour project and worked on drafting a design template for a 
brochure and map.  

 Staff will be sending out mailings to all potential properties on the walking 
tour to invite them to participate in the event and hear any concerns.  

 Commission brainstormed ideas about the City’s History Wall project and 
discussed findings. 

 
July 12, 2022 

 Commission provided feedback and thoughts on the draft poster for the 
Lawn City Neighborhood walking tour. The next steps include specific 
planning for the event day.   

 Commission and public attendees shared information about the recent 
courier article on the Mennonite Church site redevelopment project. Both 
commission and public attendees shared concerns and asked staff to 
provide information about the project. 

 City staff updated commission and public attendees that staff has received 
several inquiries about adaptive reuse and potential projects on the site 
but to date, there has been no formal application submitted to the City. 
More information would be provided once the city receives a formal 
application for a project on the site.  

 Commission discussed possibly applying for a CLG grant for doing a 
historic recon survey for Overman Park Neighborhood.  
 

August 09, 2022 

 Commission and staff discussed the final details for the “Lawn City 
Neighborhood Walking Tour” event on August 18, 2022. 

 Staff provided an update on the CLG grant application for a recon survey 
of the Overman Park neighborhood, which could be forwarded for 
consideration in next year’s grant cycle.  

September 13, 2022 
 The public attendee shared her role on Waterloo’s historic preservation 

commission and was interested in knowing about the CF HPC 
commission’s educational projects.  

 The Commission celebrated the successful “Lawn City Neighborhood 
Walking Tour” event where over 100 people attended. Staff shared 
positive feedback received from people after the event.  

 
October 11, 2022 

 Commission discussed that the Mennonite Church on 9th Street is being 
torn down. 

57

Item 11.



 The commission discussed potential future educational projects for next 
year. 
 

November 2022  
No meeting due to lack of a quorum. 
 
December 13, 2022 

 Two new commissioners were introduced to the commission. The new 
commissioners shared their expertise and how they can contribute to the 
ongoing efforts. 

 Commission finalized that the next educational event will be a walking tour 
around the Seerley Park neighborhood, as suggested by the College Hill 
Partnership.  

 Commission asked staff about ongoing code enforcement action at the 
Mandalay Mansion. Staff to provide updates at the next meeting.  

 
 
Chair: Julie Etheredge  
Vice Chair: Sally Timmer  
 

 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2022 THROUGH DECEMBER 2022 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

2
2
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
2
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
2
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

2
 

 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
2
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
2

2
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
2

2
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
2
 

D
e
c

. 
2

0
2

2
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a
ti

o
 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Sally Timmer 

N
o

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

X X X X X X X X X 
 

N
o

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

X 10/10 100% 

Julie Etheredge X X X X X X X X X X 10/10 100% 

Michael 
Mahncke  

X X X X X X X X X X 10/10 100% 

Lindi Roelofse 
(started in Dec.) 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X 1/1 100% 

Jim O’Loughlin 
(started in Dec.) 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X 1/1 100% 

X =  Present 
O =  Not Present  

58

Item 11.



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS 
2022 Annual Summary 

 
Following is a summary of the activity of the Board of Rental Housing Appeals (BRHA) 
including some indication of if those cases were officially considered by the Group Rental 
Committee (GRC). Note that the Group Rental Committee is not authorized to grant higher 
occupancy in change of ownership cases where the lot does not meet minimum size 
standards but will often inform staff’s recommendations to the BRHA. Staff provides 
analysis and recommendation to the BRHA based on the characteristics of the site and 
carrying capacity of the property. The occupancy listed in the table is the number approved 
by the BRHA: 

    

Date 
Discussed/Approved 

Address Owner 
Requested 
Occupancy 

Approved 
for GRC BRHA 

514 Walnut Street Sindt Properties LLC 4 4 appealed 2/28/2022 

710 W 22nd Street K&B Property Rentals LLC 4 4 appealed 3/28/2022 

721 W 20th Street Brian Wingert 4 4 appealed 6/23/2022 

1112 W 22nd Street Bryce and Andrew Steiert 4 4 appealed 7/25/2022 

718 E Seerley Blvd. 
Wegmann Real Estate 
Company LLC 4 4 appealed 10/10/2022 

2500 Walnut Street Southgate Properties III LC 4 4 appealed 10/10/2022 

 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals is comprised of the following members: 

Chair: Dan Berregaard 
Vice Chair: Cindy Wiles 
Member: Mary Jane McCollum 
Member: Bruce Wingert 
Member: Kim Kranz 
Member: Vacant seat 
Member: Vacant seat 
 

 
Below is a summary of attendance: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59

Item 11.



 
BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2022 THROUGH DECEMBER 2022 

 
J

a
n

. 

 2
0

2
2
 

F
e

b
. 

2
8

 

2
0

2
2
 

M
a

r.
 

2
8
 

2
0

2
2
 

A
p

r.
  

2
0

2
2
 

M
a

y
. 

2
0

2
2
 

J
u

n
e

 

2
3

 

2
0

2
2
 

J
u

ly
 

2
5
 

 2
0

2
2
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
2
 

S
e

p
. 
 

 2
0

2
2
 

O
c

t.
 

1
0
 

2
0

2
2
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
2
 

D
e

c
. 

 2
0

2
2
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 

A
tt

e
n

d
. 

Cindy Wiles 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

    O X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

4/5 80% 

Kim Kranz  X O X X X 4/5 80% 

Mary Jane 
McCollum 

X X X X X 5/5 100% 

Dan 
Berregaard  

X X X X X 5/5 100% 

Bruce Wingert  X X R X X 5/5 100% 

Vacant Seat N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Vacant Seat   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
X = Present 
O = Not Present 
R = Recused due to conflict  
N/A  =  Member was no longer serving on Board  

 

60

Item 11.



 

 
1 

CEDAR FALLS HOUSING COMMISSION 
Annual Summary 

2022 
 
 

January 11, 2022- No Meeting 
 
February 15, 2022 
 

1. Work related to City Council Goals on Housing……………………… ................... . DISCUSSION 
 

2. Review of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation .......................... . DISCUSSION 
 

3. Consider reducing the Housing Commission to five members…………… ............. . APPROVED 
 

4. Change of by-laws ……………………… ................................................................ . APPROVED 
 
March 8, 2022 
 

1. Work related to City Council Goals on Housing ……………………… .................. . DISCUSSION 
 

2. Follow-up from Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation ........................ . DISCUSSION 
 
April 19, 2022 
 

1. Work related to City Council Goals on Housing ……………………… .................. . DISCUSSION 
 

2. Follow-up from Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation ........................ . DISCUSSION 
 

3. Owner- Occupied Repair Project- 700 W. Ridgeway Avenue, Lot #325 …………… APPROVED 
 

4. Section 8 Status Report ……………………………........... ...................................... DISCUSSION 
 
May 17, 2022   
 

1. Work related to City Council Goals on Housing ………………… ......................... . DISCUSSION 
 
2. Housing Needs Assessment Update .........  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 
       
3. Section 8 Status Report (2018-2022)……………………………........... ................... DISCUSSION 

 
 

 
June 14, 2022  
 

1. CDBG Annual Action Plan (FFY22) ……………………… ........................................ APPROVED 
 

61

Item 11.



 

 
2 

2. Work related to City Council Goals on Housing ………………… ......................... . DISCUSSION 
 
3. Housing Needs Assessment Update .........  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 
       
4. Section 8 Status Report……………………………........... ....................................... DISCUSSION 

 
July 12, 2022 - No Meeting 
 

1. Date and Time Change for regular meetings……………………………........... ....... DISCUSSION 
 

2. Work related to City Council Goals on Housing ………………… ......................... . DISCUSSION 
 
3. Housing Needs Assessment update .........  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 
       

 
August 8, 2022 – No Meeting 
 
September 21, 2022 
 

1. FFY 2022 CDBG Awards to Service Agencies ................. …………………….……...APPROVED 
 

2. 2022 Payment Standards for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program……….. APPROVED 
 

3. City Council Goals related to Housing and Review Homework………………… ... . DISCUSSION 
 
4. Housing Needs Assessment Update .........  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 

 
 
October 19, 2022 

 
1. FFY 2022 CAPER (year-end report for CDBG activities) ......................................... APPROVED 

 
2. City Council Goals related to Housing and Review of Work Completed……… .... . DISCUSSION 

 
3. Housing Needs Assessment Update .........  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 

 
4. Section 8 Status Report  ................................................... ……………………….... DISCUSSION 

 
November 16, 2022 
 

1 Work related to City Council Goals on Housing ………………… ......................... . DISCUSSION 
 
2. Housing Needs Assessment Update .........  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 
       
3. Section 8 Status Report ……………………………........... ...................................... DISCUSSION 

 
December 21, 2022- No Meeting – Lack of Quorum  

62

Item 11.



 

 
3 

 
 
Chair:  Gary Winterhof 
Vice Chair Helen Pearce  
 
 

HOUSING COMMISSION 
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2022 THROUGH DECEMBER 2022 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

2
2
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
2
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
2
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

2
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
2
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
2

2
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
2

2
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
2
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0
2

2
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Fairbanks 

N
o

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

NA NA NA NA NA X 

N
o

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

X X X 

N
o

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

4/4 100% 

Heston X X X O O R R R R 3/5 60% 

Larson NA NA NA NA NA X X X X 4/4 100% 

Pearce X X X X X X X O X 8/9 89% 

Timmerman X X X X X X X X X 9/9 100% 

Winterhof X X X X X O O X X 7/9 78% 

 
X =  Present 
O =  Not Present 
R =  Resigned 
NA = Not Appointed 

63

Item 11.



 

Public 

     

ANNUAL REPORT for Calendar Year 2022 
Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

2022 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

Lisa Brodersen 

Andrea Christopher 

John DeGroote 

Matt Dunning 

Andrew Shroll: Chair 

Roger White: Vice Chair 

Jack Yates 

Chris Sevy: Cedar Falls City Liaison 

Matt Tolan: Cedar Falls Engineering Liaison 

Zach Ladage: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Austin Lechtenberg: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Aldina Dautović: INRCOG Liaison 

Kyle Durant: INRCOG Liaison 

 

MEETING SCHEDULE: Normal monthly meetings are held at the Cedar Falls City Hall 

Duke Young Conference Room on the first Tuesday of each month from 5:15 to 6:30 

pm. Due to City Hall construction, 2022 meetings were held alternatively on Zoom or at 

the Cedar Falls Visitor Center. 

MISSION STATEMENT: The Committee’s Mission is to improve the quality of life in 

Cedar Falls through increased opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable 

means of transportation and physical activity. 

  

64

Item 11.



 

Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2022 Annual Report 

Public 

ANNUAL REPORT ON GOALS 

GOALS REALIZED IN 2022 

1. Bicycle Network Plan adopted (2022 Update) 

2. Conversion to a commission approved at Goals Setting 

3. Design feedback incorporated into Main Street Reconstruction 

4. INRCOG Pedestrian Master Plan adopted by MPO 

5. INRCOG Interactive Map launched 

6. National Bike Month activities 

7. Winter Trails Map created and Snow Removal Plan approved at Goals Setting 

8. Supported Railroad Crossing Removal grant application 

9. Currents Articles 

GOALS FOR 2023 

1. Apply for renewal of Bicycle Friendly Community status 

2. Complete the process of becoming a commission 

3. Recommend comprehensive trail network signage 

4. Investigate incentivized bicycle registration for stolen bicycle recovery 

5. Monitor, recommend, and track resolutions to trail and sidewalk concerns 

6. Substantive in-person activities focusing on the “Five E’s” for creating safe and 
useable accommodations for bicyclists and pedestrians: 

ENGINEERING – Creating safe and convenient places to walk, ride and park 

EDUCATION – Giving people of all ages and abilities the skills and confidence to 
ride and walk, including awareness for motorists in sharing the road 

ENCOURAGEMENT – Creating a strong bike and pedestrian culture that welcomes 
and celebrates both modes of transportation 

EQUITY & ACCESSIBILITY – A bicycle-friendly community for everyone 

EVALUATION & PLANNING – Planning for bicycling and walking as safe, viable 
transportation options  

65

Item 11.



 

Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2022 Annual Report 

Public 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CITY and STATUS 

1. Elevate the Cedar Falls Bicycle / Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee to a standing committee similar to current boards 
and commissions 

Approved at 
Goals Setting. 
Pending next 

steps 

2. Adopt revised Bicycle Network Plan Adopted 

3. Amend Bicycle Ordinance based on committee 
recommendations 

No action in 
2022 

4. Adopt clearly stated policy that bicycles “May Use Full Lane” 
without sharrow 

No action in 
2022 

5. Monitor pedestrian/motor vehicle and bicycle/motor vehicle 
collision and injury statistics 

No action in 
2022 

6. Provide funds for designation of staff to serve as 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Program Manager(s) 

No action in 
2022 

7. Summarize design processes for sidewalks and trails New 

8. Adopt snow removal recommendations for specified trails Approved at 
Goals Setting 

 
Specific locations: 
 

1. Root damage trail repair Pending City action 

2. Add Grand Boulevard trail segment where road is 
discontinuous 

CIP item. Pending 
funding. 

3. Waterloo Rd/Utility Pkwy intersection improvements Recommend 
double yellow line 

on Utility Pkwy 

4. Viking Road crossing improvements Further safety 
improvements 

needed 

5. Sidewalk infill north side of 12th St from Hudson to Division Under investigation 

6. Drainage improvements for underpass between Pfeiffer Park 
and CFU and other locations where trail gets slippery 

Under investigation 

 

66

Item 11.



 

Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2022 Annual Report 

Public 

LONG-TERM GOALS 

1. Increase continuity and safety of bicycle routes for transportation 

2. Increase walkability and pedestrian friendliness in Cedar Falls 

3. Implement recommendations captured in Bicycle Network Plan and Metropolitan 

Pedestrian Master Plan  

4. Recommend grant funds for bicycle and pedestrian intersection and connectivity 

improvements 

5. Obtain Silver Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls 

6. Update neighborhood design standards to include bicycle and pedestrian 

accommodations and “walkable community” zoning practices 

 
2023 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

Andrea Christopher 

John DeGroote 

Matt Dunning 

Andrew Shroll: Chair 

Roger White 

Jack Yates: Vice Chair 

Lauri Young 

Chris Sevy: Cedar Falls City Liaison 

Matt Tolan: Cedar Falls Engineering Liaison 

Zach Ladage: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Austin Lechtenberg: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Kyle Durant: INRCOG Liaison 

Aldina Dautović: INRCOG Liaison 

 

 

67

Item 11.



PERMIT CATEGORY TOTAL MONTH 2022 2021

Sign 112 January 58 47

Single Family Dwelling 51 February 65 42

Residential Addition 19 March 102 99

Deck 102 April 159 140

Fence 173 May 116 97

Detached Structure 46 June 106 112

Duplex/Condo 8 July 73 87

Com./Ind./Pub. Building 6 August 128 84

Com./Ind./Pub. Addition 3 September 99 87

Townhouse 20 October 78 64

Multi-Family 0 November 82 51

Driveway/Parking Lot 129 December 44 50

Home Occupation 2 Total 1110 960

Demolition 26

Land Use (shed<120sq.ft) 26

Swimming Pool 6

Poultry 12

Remodel 358

Floodplain Permits 11

Total 1110

LAND USE PERMITS ISSUED IN THE 2022 CALENDAR YEAR BY THE

PLANNING DIVISION FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

2022

2021

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180
J
a
n
u
a

ry

F
e
b

ru
a

ry

M
a

rc
h

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u

s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 220 240 260 280 300 320 340 360 380

Sign

Single Family Dwelling

Residential Addition

Deck

Fence

Detached Structure

Duplex/Condo

Com./Ind./Pub. Building

Com./Ind./Pub. Addition

Townhouse

Multi-Family

Driveway/Parking Lot

Home Occupation

Demolition

Land Use (shed<120sq.ft)

Swimming Pool

Poultry

Remodel

Floodplain Permits

Copy of 2022 permit summary jd  2/13/2023
68

Item 11.



Copy of 2022 permit summary jd  2/13/2023
69

Item 11.



70

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  February 13, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

c) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol – new. 

 

71

Item 13.



Cedar Falls, Iowa – $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) sold its $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, 

Series 2022 (the “Notes”) at competitive sale on July 18, 2022, closing on August 31, 2022.  The Notes 

were originally designated by the City as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” under Section 265(b)(3) of 

the Tax Code.   

“Qualified tax-exempt obligations” (e.g. “bank qualified” or “BQ”) must be designated by a “qualified 

small issuer” under Section 265(b)(3).  “Qualified small issuers” are limited to issuance of not more than 

$10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations in a calendar year.  An issuer and all entities which issue 

obligations on behalf of such issuer are aggregated for purposes of the “qualified small issuer” analysis.   

The Cedar Falls Utility (CFU), governed by a separate Board of Trustees, is a component unit of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Along with the Metropolitan Utilities District of Omaha, and the City of Hastings, 

Nebraska, CFU is a member of joint powers entity, Central Plains Energy Project (“CPEP”), a separate 

legal entity and public body corporate and politic organized under the law of the state of Nebraska, and an 

instrumentality of its members.   

Unbeknownst to the City at the time of the sale or issuance of the Notes, CPEP issued $626,250,000 Gas 

Project Revenue Bonds (for Project No. 5), dated July 21, 2022 (“Gas Bonds”), secured by revenues of 

Gas Supply Agreements between CPEP and Project Participants.  CFU is a Project Participant with an 

enumerated amount of gas allocated to CFU by CPEP, which along with the other Project Participants, is 

sufficient to provide revenues enabling CPEP to make the scheduled debt service payments on the Gas 

Bonds.   

The allocation of the Gas Bonds to CFU exceeds $10,000,000 in calendar year 2022. Accordingly, the 

City was not an eligible “qualified small issuer” in 2022, and the City’s designation of the Notes as “bank 

qualified” under Section 265(b)(3) was made in error.   

The City is taking action to remove the improper “bank qualified” designation from the Note, and work 

with current holders to resolve the economic impact, if any, of the change in “bank qualified” status.   

Impact of loss of bank qualified status:  Section 265(a) of the Code generally denies a deduction for 

interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Notes.  However, in the case of a 

financial institution, a deduction may be allowed under section 265(b) of the Code for that portion of the 

financial institution’s interest expense that is allocable to interest on tax-exempt obligations designated as 

“qualified tax-exempt obligations”.   

The Notes are NOT “qualified tax-exempt obligations” under Section 265(b)(3).  Accordingly, financial 

institutions which hold the Notes will NOT be eligible to claim the deduction for a portion of the interest 

on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Notes.  Financial institutions holding the 

Notes should seek the advice of its tax consultant regarding the impact, if any, due to the loss of the “bank 

qualified” status of the Notes. 

Be advised, interest paid to holders of the Notes is still excludable from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes.   

 

72

Item 15.



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 

 

  Resolution Amending Resolution No. 22,901 approving and authorizing a form of Loan 

Agreement and authorizing and providing for the issuance, and levying a tax to pay the 

Notes; Approval of Amendment to Tax Exemption Certificate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

73

Item 15.



 

- 1 - 

February 20, 2023 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in __Regular_______ 

session, in the Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at _7:00 P.M., on the 

above date.  There were present Mayor Robert M. Green, in the chair, and the following named 

Council Members: 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: _None______________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * *  

 

  

74

Item 15.



 

- 2 - 

Council Member ____________________ introduced the following Resolution entitled 

"RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 22,901 APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A 

FORM OF LOAN AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE 

ISSUANCE OF $3,860,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 

2022, AND LEVYING A TAX TO PAY SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO 

TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE" and moved that it be adopted.  Council Member 

____________________ seconded the motion to adopt, and the roll being called thereon, the 

vote was as follows: 

 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

  

  

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared said Resolution duly adopted as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 22,901 

APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A FORM OF LOAN 

AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR 

THE ISSUANCE OF $3,860,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 

CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2022, AND LEVYING A 

TAX TO PAY SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT 

TO TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council previously approved Resolution No. 22,901, dated August 

15, 2022, related to the authorization and issuance of its $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital 

Loan Notes, Series 2022, sold at public sale on July 18, 2022 (the “Notes”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the “bank qualified” designation of the Notes was in error and Resolution 

No. 22,901, and related closing certificates need to be revised accordingly. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

 

Section 1. Resolution No. 22,901 is hereby amended as follows:  

(a) to delete Section 24 – “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations”, and replace 

such with “Reserved”, and  

(b) to conform the form of Note (found in Section 14) to remove the sentence: 

“This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" designated by the City 

for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986.” 

75

Item 15.



 

- 3 - 

 

Section 2. The Tax Exemption Certificate, dated August 31, 2022, is hereby amended by 

deleting Article VII – Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. 

Section 3. A Supplement to the Official Statement, a copy of which is attached hereto, is 

hereby approved.  

Section 4. City staff are hereby authorized and directed to: 

(a) coordinate with DTC, depository of the Notes, for substituted replacement 

Notes as revised herein; 

(b) make necessary filings on EMMA regarding the Supplement to the 

Official Statement, and revisions contained herein; 

(c) coordinate with Robert W. Baird, original lead underwriter of the 

underwriting syndicate of the Notes, on quantifying the economic impact 

to Noteholders due to the modification of the “bank qualified” status of the 

Notes; and 

(d) undertake any other action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this 

amending resolution. 

 

Section 5. Except as expressly amended herein, the remainder of Resolution No. 22,901is 

ratified, confirmed and approved, and shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be 

affected by this resolution. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of February, 2023. 

  

 

 

  

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

76

Item 15.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 
02161971-1\10283-185 

77

Item 15.



[Council action + 1 day], 2023 

Supplement to Final Official Statement 

NOT BANK QUALIFIED 

The “bank qualified” designation under Section 265(b)(3) of the Tax Code by the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa (the “Issuer”) for its $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, 

dated August 31, 2022 (the “Notes”) was in error, and is hereby removed.   

The “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations” section of “TAX MATTERS” is hereby deleted, and 

the summary language on the Cover Page, as modified by the August 26, 2022 Addendum, is 

hereby revised as follows (revised language indicated in bold): 

Assuming compliance with certain covenants, in the opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Bond Counsel, under 

present law and assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 

as amended (the “Code”), interest on the Notes is excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes. Interest on the Notes is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative 

minimum tax imposed on individuals; however, such interest is taken into account in determining the annual 

adjusted financial statement income of applicable corporations (as defined in Section 59(k) of the Code) for 

the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations for tax years beginning after 

December 31, 2022. The Notes will be are NOT designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations”. See “TAX 

MATTERS” section herein for a more detailed discussion.   

Impact of loss of “bank qualified” status: 

Section 265(a) of the Code generally denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or 

continued to purchase or carry the Notes.  However, in the case of a financial institution, a 

deduction may be allowed under section 265(b) of the Code for that portion of the financial 

institution’s interest expense that is allocable to interest on tax-exempt obligations designated as 

“qualified tax-exempt obligations”.   

This Supplement serves as notice the Notes are NOT “qualified tax-exempt obligations” under 

Section 265(b)(3).  Accordingly, financial institutions which hold the Notes will NOT be eligible 

to claim the deduction for a portion of the interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to 

purchase or carry the Notes.  Financial institutions holding the Notes should seek the advice of 

its tax consultant regarding the impact, if any, due to the loss of the “bank qualified” status of the 

Notes. 

Be advised, interest paid to holders of the Notes is still excludable from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes.  See the “Tax Exemptions and Related Considerations” 

section of “TAX MATTERS” herein, and APPENDIX B, “FORM OF LEGAL OPINION”. 

First interest payment on the Notes is payable June 1, 2023.  The Issuer is working with 

Noteholders as of the date of this Supplement to resolve the economic impact, if any, resulting 

from the change in the “bank qualified” designation of the Notes. 

 

02142664-5\10283-190 

78

Item 15.



79

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: February 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: HOME-ARP funds and Annual Action Plan for their use 

 
The 2021 American Rescue Plan Act included funding for the federal program HOME 
Investment Partnerships American Rescue Plan Program (HOME-ARP).  The City of 
Waterloo and Cedar Falls are a HOME Consortium eligible to receive $1,780,793 in 
funding.  Based on the federal percentage split to our consortium, this would be divided as 
follows: 

 $1,780,793     
- 15% Admin  -   $   267,118 
 $1,513,675 
  
28% Cedar Falls $   423,829 
72% Waterloo      $1,089,846 

 
The City of Waterloo is responsible for all administration of the program, given they receive 
that funding through our agreement.  Similar to CDBG, any use of HOME funds must be in 
compliance with an Annual Action Plan (AAP) which must be developed with public input.  
At the end of November 2022, Waterloo advised that they were starting the AAP.  The 
deadline to apply for the funds is March 31, 2023.  The process of developing the plan 
requires consultations with community groups.  Waterloo staff met with Cedar Falls staff in 
December to go through the approach and provide a list of meetings that would be held. 
Following the consultations, Waterloo held a public meeting for agencies to speak.  On 
January 30th, Waterloo staff advised they needed Cedar Falls requests for activities by 
February 3rd.  Due to the lack of time to consult with the Housing Commission or City 
Council in advance, staff requested Waterloo include the same actions for Cedar Falls as 
Waterloo anticipates:  

1. Provisions of Support Services (McKinney Vento Homeless Services Act) 

2. Development and Support of Affordable Housing 

3. Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Shelter Units. (possibly)   

80

Item 17.



This would be consistent with the consultations and public meeting, which is the guidance 
of US Housing & Urban Development (HUD).  Waterloo plans to utilize most of their funding 
for the first item.  It would provide service agencies with funding to provide short term rental 
assistance (3-24 months), security deposit, utility deposits, transportation, mental health 
services and case management.  This would be consistent with how Cedar Falls allocated 
Cedar Falls CDBG-CV funds in 2020-2022.  The other activities listed allow flexibility for us 
to choose to support housing rehabilitation for qualified applicants and possibly to 
collaborate with Waterloo on a shelter project with the Salvation Army to benefit each of our 
communities.  The use of Cedar Falls percentage of funds is proposed as follows: 
 

Provisions of Support Services (McKinney Vento Homeless 
Services Act) 

$282,525 67% 

Development and Support of Affordable Housing $70,652 17% 

Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Shelter 
Units. (possibly)   

$70,652 17% 

 $423,829  100% 

 

Due to the short time frame, staff is providing as much information as possible in advance.  
Waterloo is publishing public notice about the use of HOME-ARP funds February 19th.  The 
public comment period is February 20th – March 6th.  The Waterloo City Council will hold 
the formal public hearing for the Annual Action Plan on March 6, 2023.  A draft AAP is not 
available at this time but will be posted on the Cedar Falls CDBG/HOME webpage when it 
has been provided to us. 
    
Following is a link to HUD’s published information about HOME-ARP: Requirements for the 
Use of Funds in the HOME-ARP Program ("The Notice"). 
 
In order to support an application to utilize HOME-ARP funds, staff recommends the City 
Council approve the above outlined approach for the funds as a part of the Annual Action 
Plan for March 31, 2023 submission.  The Housing Commission will be reviewing this at 
their February 15, 2023 meeting. 
 

 

81

Item 17.

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6479/notice-cpd-2110-requirements-for-the-use-of-funds-in-the-home-arp-program/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6479/notice-cpd-2110-requirements-for-the-use-of-funds-in-the-home-arp-program/


DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

16  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

             TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 
 
 DATE: February 13, 2023  
 
 SUBJECT: Certified Local Government Annual Report 
                       
 

In order to be eligible for the Certified Local Government (CLG) grant programs the City 
of Cedar Falls must have and maintain a Certified Local Government Agreement with 
the State of Iowa and the National Park Service. Under the CLG Agreement with the 
State, Historic Preservation Commissions are responsible for submitting an annual 
report summarizing the city or county's historic preservation work during the calendar 
year.  
 
This report documents that the City of Cedar Falls’ Historic Preservation Commission 
has met the requirements of the CLG program and would like to continue its CLG 
status. During this year, the Historic Preservation Commission was able to host a 
guided walking tour of the “Lawn City Neighborhood”. Commission mapped 18 historic 
houses in the neighborhood with unique architectural styles and planned routes to each 
house for event attendees. Among 18 houses, four of the homeowners also participated 
in the event to share their experience of living in historic homes and share historical 
information they possessed with all event attendees, making the event more interactive. 
This event was highly successful and was very well attended. We had over 100 people 
on this walking tour and most of the people enjoyed the tour and provided positive 
feedback to the commission to conduct more such events. In addition, the commission 
also gave away prizes to the top four winners of the “Scavenger Hunt at UNI” event, 
which was done by the Commission late last year.  
 
The Commission was only able to execute one of the educational events of the two 
events planned for the year 2022, as the year was challenging for the commission with 
only three members on the commission and recruiting challenges for two new 
commissioners. Commission has also put up a 2023 Work Plan for the current year 
identifying projects that the commission will be doing this year. See attached pictures 
from the event and work done by the commission for more reference. 
 

82

Item 18.



The Community Development Department recommends that City Council adopt the 
following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and authorizing the submittal of the 2022 Certified Local 
Government (CLG)/Historic Preservation Commission annual report to the State 
Historic Preservation Office. 

 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  
XC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Karen Howard, Planning & Community Service Manager 
 Julie Etheredge, Chair, Historic Preservation Commission         

 

83

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

IOWA CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
2022 ANNUAL REPORT (January 2022-December 2022) 

 
NAME OF THE CITY, COUNTY, OR LAND USE DISTRICT: City of Cedar Falls 
 

 Under the CLG Agreement with the State, local governments and their 
historic preservation commissions are responsible for submitting an annual 
report documenting the commission’s preservation work and that they have 
met the requirements of the CLG program. 

 This annual report is also an important tool for your commission to evaluate 
its own performance and to plan for the coming year. 

 
Name of the city, county or land use district: 
Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission 
 
Did your commission undertake any projects for historic identification/survey, 
evaluation and or registration/nomination projects in this calendar year? 

CLG Standards are in your local government's Certified Local Government (CLG) 
Agreement and the National Historic Preservation Act: 
1) The CLG shall maintain a system for the survey and inventory of historic and 
prehistoric properties in a manner consistent with and approved by the STATE. 
2) The CLG will review National Register nominations on any property that lies in the 
jurisdiction of its historic preservation commission. Please upload any Iowa Site 
Inventory Forms or other survey materials produced during the year. Please do not 
upload any projects that were funded with a CLG or HRDP grant, mandated by the 

[For SHPO use only] 
 
Received ______________________________ 
 
Minimum no. of meetings?               yes       no 
Required training?                               yes       no 
Fully appointed commission?                 yes       no 
Has the commission been active?         yes       no 
Has the commission accomplished  
at least one project?  yes       no 
Comments: 
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________ 
 
Approved/CLG in good standing      yes    no 
 
More information requested _________________________ 
_________________________________________________ 

 
Entered into database _________/___________ 

84

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 2 

Section 106 review and compliance process, or National Register nominations as we 
already have these documents in our files. 
The Historic Preservation Commission did not undertake any projects for Historic 
identification/survey, evaluation and or registration/nomination projects in this 
calendar year.  
 
Were any National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) properties in your City, County, 
or LUD were altered, moved, or demolished in this calendar year? 

No 
 
Does your local government designate local landmarks or local districts? 

IMPORTANT: Most local governments do not have a program for local designation. If 
you have questions about whether you have a local designation program or not, please 
contact Paula Mohr before you complete this section. 

No 
 

In this calendar year, what were the actions to revise, amend, change, or de-list a 
locally designated property? Please provide the name and address of the property(ies) 
and the action. If no action was taken, enter N/A    

N/A 
 
Has your city or county passed other ordinances that directly or indirectly affect 
historic preservation?   
No 
 
Did your city, county, LUD or its historic preservation commission undertake any of 
the following activities in this calendar year? Please think broadly about this question 
and include any activity (small or large) that facilitated historic preservation in your 
community. This is your opportunity to boast about your accomplishments and get 
credit for the great work you do! 

CLG Standards found in CLG Agreement and National Historic Preservation Act: 
1) The CLG will enforce all appropriate state and local ordinances for designating and 
protecting historic properties. 
2) The CLG shall provide for adequate public participation in the local historic 
preservation programs. 

a. Historic preservation planning. Examples include the development or revision of 
an preservation plan, development of a work plan for your commission, etc. 

b. Provided technical assistance on historic preservation issues or projects. 
Examples include working with individual property owners, business owners, institutions 
to identify appropriate treatments and find appropriate materials, research advice, etc. 

85

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 3 

c. Sponsored public educational programming in historic preservation. Examples 
include training sessions offered to the public, walking tours, open houses, lectures, 
Preservation Month activities, etc. 

d. Design guidelines/standards 
 
During this year, the Historic Preservation Commission was working on two educational 
projects to share the history and preservation knowledge with the community. 
However, the commission was only able to focus on one education project. Commission 
worked on gathering historical information for the Overman Park neighborhood. 
Commission then identified several houses in the neighborhood with significant 
architectural styles and mapped them to create an interactive walking tour. For the 
walking tour event of the Overman Park neighborhood, the commission mapped 18 
houses in the neighborhood and contacted homeowners by mail inviting them to 
participate in the event by sharing their experience of living in a historic house. Out of 
18 houses, 4 of the homeowners also decided to participate in the event and share their 
experiences, which made the event more interactive. For the event, the commission 
designed a tri-fold brochure to provide attendees with a handout and designed the 
event poster. The commission named the event “Lawn City Neighborhood Walking 
Tour”, and the event was a massive success. The event was a guided walking tour 
around the neighborhood and also provided interactive opportunities for the event 
attendees. The four homeowners shared historical facts including photo albums, and 
family stories about their houses, thus sharing their experience with event attendees, 
providing more of an interactive environment for the attendees. We had over 100 
people on this walking tour and most of the people enjoyed the tour and provided 
positive feedback to the commission to conduct more such events. See attached 
pictures from the event, the trifold brochures, and the event poster for more reference.  
 
Besides “The Lawn City Neighborhood walking tour”, the commission also reviewed the 
submitted scavenger hunt event’s worksheets and gave away prizes to the top four 
contenders. The “Scavenger hunt” was about highlighting significant artworks and 
architectural elements of significant buildings on the UNI campus. This educational 
event allowed people to learn about historical elements on the campus including 
learning the architectural style of the campus. This event took place in December 2021, 
so the commission distributed prizes to the top four scavenger hunt winners. See 
attached the Scavenger hunt worksheet and the pictures from the prize distribution 
event that was conducted by Historic Preservation Commission. 
 
In addition, the Historic Preservation Commission also worked on getting information 
about the CLG grant process for possibly doing a recon survey of one of the older 
neighborhoods in the city but was too late to gather information and apply for the 
grant. The commission will be working on the project next year, to be able to apply for a 
CLG grant. See attached 2023 Work Plan that was drafted by the commission for more 
reference. 

86

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 4 

 
Are there any particular issues, challenges, and/or successes your preservation 
commission has encountered or accomplished this year?  
 

Throughout the year, the commission did an educational event that was greatly 
successful and also distributed prizes to one of the educational events that were done 
late last year, to encourage new participants and motivate preservationists in the 
community.  
 

1. Historic Preservation Commission conducted a successful educational event in 
the community, wherein the event was a guided walking tour of “The Lawn City 
Neighborhood”. Commission mapped about 18 houses in the neighborhood 
based on the significant architectural styles and developed a walking map and 
trifold-interactive brochure for event attendees as a handout. Besides this, the 
commission partnered the event with certain city organizations and Historical 
Societies to conduct the event. The event was also interactive as 4 of the 
homeowners on the tour decided to participate in the event and shared their 
experience of living in a historic home. The homeowners showcased photo 
albums, shared stories of the house design, and also shared some family 
memories with event attendees. The whole event was a massive success with 
over 100 event attendees. Attendees provides some great positive feedback 
about the event and enjoyed the interactive nature of the tour, as it provided a 
chance for attendees to ask questions and learn more details. See attached 
pictures from the event, the trifold brochures, and the event poster for more 
reference.   

2. Historic Preservation Commission reviewed and selected the top four winners 
for the “Scavenger hunt” event that was done in December 2021. The 
“Scavenger hunt” was about highlighting significant artworks and architectural 
elements of significant buildings on the UNI campus. The participants learned 
about several historical elements on the UNI campus, and the four shortlisted 
winners were awarded prizes. The idea behind giving prizes was to encourage 
more participants and also enhance preservation knowledge in the community. 
See attached Scavenger Hunt worksheet that was used by participants and the 
pictures from the prize distribution event for more reference.  
 

One of the challenges, that the commission faced was the unavailability of two 
commissioners as they did not plan to continue the commission as they had other 
commitments. So, the commission only had 3 members to get all the work done as 
planned in their Work Plan. Also, it was hard to find interested candidates for the 
commission, and it took a long time to get two new commissioners on board. So, by end 
of the year, the commission was back to its strength and is hoping to accomplish all 
identified projects in its work plan 2023. 

 

87

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 5 

All project work including presentation, pamphlet designs, article and successful 
outcomes of event are attached for more information with the report. 
 

What partnerships did your commission form or continue with other entities? 
(Examples include local main street office, historical society, library, museum, service 
club, etc.) If none, enter N/A  
We continue to work with the Cedar Falls Historical Society, Community Main Street, 
College Hill Partnership, Cedar Falls Tourism and other City of Cedar Falls departments. 
 
Did your historic preservation commission receive any grants (other than CLG or 
HRDP) this year? If so, please describe. If none, enter N/A.  
N/A 
 

Does your commission have a website? 
Yes 
 
What is the website address?  
There is a link to the Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission on the city’s website 
(www.cedarfalls.com ) under Government, Boards, and Commissions. 
 
Does your commission have a Facebook page? 
No 
 
List dates of public commission meetings held (please note these are meetings 
actually held with a quorum, not just those that were scheduled).  
CLG Standards found in CLG Agreement and National Historic Preservation Act: 
1) The CLG will organize and maintain a historic preservation commission, which must 
meet at least three (3) times per year. 
2) The commission will be composed of community members with a demonstrated 
positive interest in historic preservation, or closely related fields, to the extent available 
in the community. 
3) The commission will comply with Iowa Code Chapter 21 (open meetings) in its 
operations. 
4) Commission members will participate in state-sponsored or state-approved historic 
preservation training activities. 

Meetings (with a quorum) were scheduled on following dates: 

2/08/22, 3/08/22, 4/12/22, 5/10/22, 6/14/22, 7/12/22, 8/09/22, 9/13/22, 10/11/22, 
and 12/13/22, These meetings were publicized and open to the public.  

We recommend that the local government provide the commission a budget with a 
minimum of $750 to pay for training and other commission expenses. In this calendar 
year, what was the dollar amount for the historic preservation commission’s annual 
budget? 

88

Item 18.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


CLG Annual Report 2022 6 

The Commission does not have its own budget. Funding and staff support for 
Commission activities (including attending conferences) and meetings is covered under 
the City’s Community Services Division budget and is well over $750 per year. 

 

Where are your official CLG files located? 

Certified Local Government files must be stored at city hall (for city commissions) or the 
county courthouse (for county commissions). 

Files are electronically saved in the City’s Planning and Community Services computers 
in a CLG folder dedicated to Historic Preservation activities. Paper copies are also kept 
by the City’s staff liaison to the Commission, Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD) 

Please list the names of the Historic Preservation Commissioners who served during 
this calendar year. 

Julie Etheredge, Sally Timmer, Brian Hayes (stepped down), Nathan Arndt (stepped 
down), Michael Mahncke, Lindi Roelofse (filled opening), and Jim O’Loughlin (filled 
opening). 
 

Each CLG was asked to provide a work plan last year. Please provide a self-assessment 
of your progress on the initiatives and programs you identified last year. Were you 
able to accomplish much of what you set out to do? If not, what would help you fulfill 
this next year’s work plan?  

The commission did have some challenges to continuing working on identified projects 

in the work plan for the year 2022. The biggest challenge was the loss of two 

commissioners, who did not want to continue serving because of other commitments. The 

loss was hard on other commissioners as they only had three members in total to do the 

work. However, the commission managed to conduct a highly successful educational 

event “The Lawn City Neighborhood Walking Tour”, which was a guided walking tour 

of the 18 houses in the neighborhood. The walking tour also had a few interactive 

elements, as 4 of the homeowners out of 18 houses, participated to share the facts of the 

historic home they live in and share their experiences with event attendees. With the 

smaller size of the commission, they were unable to get work done on the identified 2nd 

educational project on College Hill. But in late 2022, two new commissioners were 

appointed to the commission, so the commission is now full in size and hoping to 

accomplish more great events in the following year as highlighted in the 2023 Work Plan 

by the commissioners. See attached posters, presentation, and article pieces for more 

reference on project work. 

Each commission should develop a work plan for the coming year. This work plan 
should include the project(s), initiatives and programs you plan to begin or complete. 
Also discuss your plan for obtaining historic preservation training in 2023. Please 
attach your work plan to your annual report. 

Please find the attached work plan for year 2023. 

89

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 7 

Please complete the Commission Training Table.  

An important requirement of the Certified Local Government program is annual state-

sponsored (such as the Preserve Iowa Summit) or state-approved training undertaken by 

at least one member of the historic preservation commission and/or staff liaison. In this 

table, provide information about the commissioners’ involvement in historic preservation 

training, listing the name of the conference, workshop or meeting (including online 

training opportunities); the sponsoring organization; the location and date when the 

training occurred. Be sure to provide the names of commissioners, staff, and elected 

officials who attended. 

 

Name of Event Sponsor 

Organization 

Location Date Name of 

Attendees 

Preserve Iowa 

Summit 

 Mason City June 2-4, 2022 Sally Timmer 

 

 
Who of your commission members, staff, and/or elected officials attended the 
Preserve Iowa Summit? If so, please provide their names. 
Please note this must be completed. If no one attended, enter none. 

Sally Timmer attended the Preserve Iowa Summit in 2022. 
 
Signature page 
 
Please find the attached Signature Page. 

 
CLG Personnel Table 
 
A. Please list the names of the Historic Preservation Commissioners who served during 
calendar year 2022: 
Julie Etheredge, Sally Timmer, Brian Hayes (stepped down), Nathan Arndt (stepped 
down), Michael Mahncke, Lindi Roelofse (filled opening), and Jim O’Loughlin (filled 
opening). 
 
B. CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL 2022 
Name of Mayor, Chairman of Board of Supervisors, or President of LUD Trustees:  
First Name:  Robert 
Last Name: Green  
Mailing Address:  220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA, 50613 
Phone Number: (319) 268-5118 
Email Address:  Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com 
 
C. STAFF PERSON FOR THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

90

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 8 

First Name:  Jaydevsinh (JD) 
Last Name: Atodaria 

Job Title: Planner I  
Mailing Address:  220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Phone Number: (319) 268-5185 
Email Address: JDA@cedarfalls.com 
 
2022 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION:  Please note that this is for 2022 

 
Please complete the following and provide information about your new 2022 
commission.   
 
If the commissioner represents a locally designated district, provide the name of the 
district (Representative, Name of Historic District).  Specify the month, day, and year 
that the commissioner's term will end (Term Ends).  If a commission member serves 
as contact with the State Historic Preservation Office for the Commission, please 
circle yes.   Electronic and mailed communication will be sent to the staff person 
for the commission and the contact.  

 
CHAIRPERSON/COMMISSIONER 
First Name Julie 
Last Name: Etheredge 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 322 W. 
6th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319) 269-5710 
Work Phone Number: (319) 233-8419 
 
Email Address: juliee@invisionarch.com 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year2023  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
VICE CHAIRPERSON/ COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name Sally  
Last Name: Timmer 
 

91

Item 18.

mailto:JDA@cedarfalls.com
mailto:juliee@invisionarch.com


CLG Annual Report 2022 9 

Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 203 
Tremont St., Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: Cell: (319) 269-1870 
Work Phone Number: (319) 833-3015 
 
Email Address: sallykleisstimmer@gmail.com    
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year2023  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name: Michael  
 
Last Name: Mahncke 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 1228 
Rainbow Drive, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319)-231-8514 
Work Phone Number: (319) 266-6576 
 
Email Address: bubba316@hotmail.com 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2022  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name: Lindi  
 
Last Name: Roelofse 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 4815 
Algonquin Drive #3, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

92

Item 18.



CLG Annual Report 2022 10 

 
Home Phone Number: (319)-464-0752 
Work Phone Number: (319)-464-0752 
 
Email Address: lindi.roelofse@uni.edu 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2025  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 

COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name: Jim  
 
Last Name: O’Loughlin 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 815 
State Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319)-273-2821 
Work Phone Number: (319)-504-5273 
 
Email Address: jim.oloughlin@uni.edu 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2025  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 

93

Item 18.



2-10-23 

Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission 
Work Plan 2023 

 
Project Title:  Walking tour of Seerley Park neighborhood 

Project Scope of work: 
 

Research existing historic homes in this area neighboring downtown 
Cedar Falls for a tour of homes.  Looking at touring 7 to 8 homes in an 
afternoon of unique architectural styles that highlight the 
neighborhood. The Commission will also be partnering this project 
with local university students and the College Hill Partnership 
organization to promote the historical area and its importance in the 
community. 

Persons responsible: 
 

Julie Etheredge (Lead Commissioner), Sally Timmer, Michael 
Mahncke, Lindi Roelofse, and Jim O’Loughlin 

Timeline: 
 

 Jan – March – Research and put together materials and 
identify possible homes to be on the tour. 

 April – Put together all the researched contents including 
maps and the design of a poster and start reaching out to 
surrounding residents by mail. 

 May-June – Host the event with several partners. (Target is to 
host the event in Preservation Month or to possibly tie in with 
any possible college hill event) 

Expected outcome: 
 

Tour of homes in the Seerley Park neighborhood. 

Project Title: Applying for CLG grant to conduct a recon survey of the Overman 
Park Neighborhood  

Project Scope of work: 
 

To apply for a CLG grant to conduct a recon survey of the Overman 
Park Neighborhood. The bigger goal is to do an intensive survey of 
the area and get detailed information about the properties in the 
area, to be able to protect them to an extent. However, the first step 
would be to get the grant money to conduct a recon survey of the 
area to understand its potential and significance. 

Persons responsible: 
 

Sally Timmer (Lead Commissioner), Julie Etheredge, Michael 
Mahncke, Lindi Roelofse, and Jim O’Loughlin 

Timeline: 
 

 Jan-March – Research and put together materials and obtain 
quotes from different consultants. 

 April-June – Put together all the researched contents, develop 
a timeline, and budget, and identify the objective of the 
project. 

 July-Aug – Obtain necessary approval for the application and 
start filling out the application process and submit it by the 
due date. 

Expected outcome: CLG grant application, And if the grant is awarded, the commission 

94

Item 18.



2-10-23 

 will identify the next steps to plan the project, complete the project 
in the following year and get the recon survey results. 

Project Title: Develop a digital library of the historic preservation resources  

Project Scope of work: 
 

To create a digital library of historical resources for developing a 
digital medium for the community to access information efficiently. 

Persons responsible: 
 

Jim O’Loughlin (Lead Commissioner), Sally Timmer, Julie Etheredge, 
Michael Mahncke, and Lindi Roelofse. 

Timeline: 
 

 August - September– Identify the way to digitize the content 
and start drafting a template. Research and put together 
materials and identify possible partners and content. 

 October – November – Start arranging the resources in the 
designed template, add credits, and check user accessibility.  

 December – February – Finalize the content, get needed 
approval for the developed page, and make it live to the 
public through a promotion. 

Expected outcome: 
 

A digital library of all educational events completed by the Historic 
Preservation Commission   

 

95

Item 18.



96

Item 18.



CEDAR FALLS HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
2022 Annual Summary.  

 
January 2022 
No meeting due to lack of a quorum. 

  
February 08, 2022 

 Public attendees shared concerns about West Gym on the UNI campus 
and asked the commission's thoughts. 

 Commission was updated that the Seerley house was chosen to be on the 
endangered list as per a recent announcement by Preservation Iowa. 

 Commission identified and discussed the timeline for two educational 
events including a walk-in tour within Overman Park Neighborhood and a 
presentation about historical assets in the College Hill Neighborhood. 

 Commission reviewed and selected four winners of the Scavenger Hunt 
educational project. 

 
March 08, 2022 
 

 The commission discussed updates on both the Overman Park 
Neighborhood project and the College Hill Neighborhood project. 

 Commission discussed the recent listing of Mennonite Church property for 
sale. Staff updated that there are ongoing talks with different people about 
possibly doing adaptive reuse of the building but there are no concrete 
plans yet. 

 Commission elected Julie Etheredge as Chair and Sally Timmer as the 
Vice Chair for the commission.   

 
April 12, 2022 

 A public attendee shared concerns about the history of Seerley House 
which is at risk of being torn down and also discussed information on the 
Mausoleum at the Greenwood Cemetery with the commission members. 

 Commission shared updates on the Overman Park Neighborhood walk-in 
tour project and updated the project timeline intending to host the event in 
July. 

 The commission discussed recent findings of historical information about 
the UNI campus, which will allow people to observe the history on campus 
and spread educational awareness in the community. 
 

May 10, 2022 

 The public attendee shared the certificate from the mayor declaring the 
month of May to be Historic Preservation month and shared updates on 
the Seerley House. 

 The commission discussed specifics of the upcoming “Lawn City 
Neighborhood walking tour” event and discussed ideas for designing the 
poster and invite.  

97

Item 18.



 Commission inquired about the timing of the possible appointment of new 
commissioners on the two vacant seats. Staff updated that it is the 
mayor’s process and it can take a little bit more time if we do not have 
ready and willing applicants. 

 
June 14, 2022 

 A public attendee shared an idea with the commission about working on 
getting some plaque or sign for historically significant buildings or areas 
through grant funding.  

 Commission discussed the specifics of the Overman Park Neighborhood 
walking tour project and worked on drafting a design template for a 
brochure and map.  

 Staff will be sending out mailings to all properties on the walk-in tour list to 
spread the message about the possible event and also to hear possible 
concerns. 

 Commission discussed possibly doing a scavenger hunt for people to find 
the matches for previous era pictures and restored area pictures of 
different buildings as an educational activity for a project on College Hill 
Neighborhood.  

 Commission brainstormed ideas about the City’s History Wall project and 
discussed findings. 

 
July 12, 2022 

 Commission provided feedback and thoughts on the draft poster for the 
Overman Park Neighborhood project. The next steps include specific 
planning for the event day.   

 Commission and public attendees shared information about the recent 
courier article on the Mennonite Church site redevelopment project. Both 
commission and public attendees shared concerns and asked staff to 
provide information about the project. 

 City staff updated commission and public attendees that staff has received 
several inquiries about adaptive reuse and potential projects on the site 
but to date, there has been no formal application submitted to the City. 
Staff updated that they could provide more information, once the city 
receives any formal application about the proposal.  

 Commission discussed possibly applying for a CLG grant for doing a 
recon survey for Overman Park Neighborhood. The staff mentioned that 
the project sounds great but the timeline for getting things approved by 
Council prior application deadline will be a little hard to achieve.  
 

August 09, 2022 

 Commission and staff discussed the final details about sending invites and 
notifications for the upcoming “Lawn City Neighborhood Walking Tour” 
event on August 18, 2022. 

 Staff provided an update on the CLG grant application for a recon survey 
of the Overman Park neighborhood everything seems great about the 

98

Item 18.



project but unfortunately, they will have to wait to apply until next year as 
in the current year, there are no funds set up in the budget for the same. 

 Staff suggested a commission to target the CLG grant application for the 
next grant cycle, that way they have ample time to do research and also 
can make sure that the same project is budgeted.  

 
September 13, 2022 

 The public attendee shared her role on Waterloo’s historic preservation 
commission and was interested in knowing about the CF HPC 
commission’s practices and learning about the recent success of the 
educational event. 

 Staff thanked the commission for their valuable efforts for the “Lawn City 
Neighborhood Walking Tour” event and mentioned that this was the 
biggest success. Staff also shared some positive feedback received from 
the people after the event.  

 Commission updated staff that they would want to target the next CLG 
grant cycle for getting a grant to do a recon survey of the Overman Park 
neighborhood.  
 

October 11, 2022 
 Commission discussed that the Mennonite Church on 9th Street is being 

torn down. 
 The commission discussed potential future projects that they want to work 

on besides applying for a CLG grant. 
 

November 2022  
No meeting due to lack of a quorum. 
 
December 13, 2022 

 Two new commissioners were introduced to the commission. The new 
commissioners shared their expertise and how they can contribute to the 
ongoing commission’s efforts. 

 Commission finalized that the next educational event they want to focus 
on is possibly a walking tour around the Seerley park neighborhood, as 
suggested by the College Hill partnership. Commission also discussed 
several ideas about the possible educational event.  

 Commission asked staff about ongoing developments at the Mandalay 
Mansion. The staff mentioned that he is not aware of any particulars but 
mentioned that It could be some code enforcement follow-ups or rental 
inspection follow-ups as in past they have received few complaints from 
the neighborhood. The staff mentioned that they would provide more 
updates at the next meeting.  

 
Chair: Julie Etheredge  
Vice Chair: Sally Timmer  
 

99

Item 18.



 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2022 THROUGH DECEMBER 2022 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

2
2
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
2
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
2

2
 

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
2
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

2
 

 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
2
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
2

2
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
2

2
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
2
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0
2

2
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Sally Timmer 

N
o

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

X X X X X X X X X 

 

N
o

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

X 10/10 100% 

Julie Etheredge X X X X X X X X X X 10/10 100% 

Michael 
Mahncke  

X X X X X X X X X X 10/10 100% 

Lindi Roelofse 
(started in Dec.) 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X 1/1 100% 

Jim O’Loughlin 
(started in Dec.) 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X 1/1 100% 

X =  Present 
O =  Not Present  

100

Item 18.



Cl
ay

 S
t

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St

Meeting Point:
First Methodist Church

Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission & Partners present:

August 18, 2022 @ 6:30 p.m.
Meeting Point: First Methodist Church, 718 Clay St.

Parking lot: NE corner of Clay Street & W. 8th Street 

Mile-long Tour (approx. 1 hour)

THE LAWN CITY NEIGHBORHOOD

Walking Tour

Get a chance to 
hear historical 
information 
and living 
experience from 
homeowners. 

Project Partners:

Discover the history 
behind our city! The 
Historic Preservation 
Committee invites you 
to experience Cedar 
Falls in a new way 
with a walking tour of 
the unique Lawn City 
Neighborhood.  
Eighteen specific homes 
will be discussed on 
this tour. Participants 
will learn about the rich 
detail and architectural 
style of the area. Select 
home owners will share 
their own stories. A 
detailed brochure will be 
provided on the tour.

This tour is intended to be a 
street side tour. Please do not 
enter any private property 
unless advised  
by a Commission member.

101

Item 18.



Cl
ay

 S
t

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St

Meeting Point:
First Methodist Church

1

2

5

6

9

11

12

13

8

10

7

3

4

18
17

16

15

14

The Lawn City Neighborhood District 
is significant because it calls attention 

to the upbuilding of Cedar Falls’ central 
residential neighborhood. The area 

contains a wide variety of housing types 
and scale, architectural influences, periods 
of construction, and building materials, and 

these various elements  
are strongly unified by the grid system  

of the neighborhood’s streets.

In the early years of the 20th century, 
community boosters popularly described 
Cedar Falls as “Lawn City.” The residential 

properties they were describing comprised 
the blocks of homes within the area discussed 

here. The Lawn City neighborhood exhibits 
a wide range of architectural styles and 

periods of construction. The area is significant 
because it calls attention to the use  

of quality building materials, a relatively 
high level of architectural detail, a certain 

uniformity of scale, and the predominance of 
single family residences.

Information provided by CF Historical Society, 
Daryl Andersen and Tom Connors.

THE LAWN CITY NEIGHBORHOOD

Walking Tour
Cedar Falls Historic Preservation 
Commission & Partners present:

August 18, 2022 @ 6:30 p.m.
Meeting Point:  

First Methodist Church, 718 Clay St. 
Parking lot: NE corner of Clay & W. 8th Sts. 

Mile-long Tour (approx. 1 hour)

Walking Tour
MAP

Below are architectural styles in the  
Lawn City Neighborhood. 

Gothic Revival (1840–1880) 
Identifying features-Gables commonly decorated 
with vergeboards, steeply pitched roof, pointed 

arch shaped windows, wall surface extending into 
gable without break, one-story, front porch

Italianate (1840–1885) 
Identifying features-Two or three stories,  

low-pitched roof, wide, overhanging eaves 
supported by decorative brackets, tall,  

narrow windows commonly arched  
and elaborated with decorative crowns

Queen Anne Victorian (1880–1910) 
Identifying features-Asymmetrical facade,  
steeply pitched roof, patterned shingles,  

bay windows, turrets/towers,  
full-width front porch

Shingle Victorian (1880–1910) 
Identifying features-Shingled walls,  

asymmetrical facade, steeply pitched,  
cross gabled roof, extensive porches

Folk Victorian (1870–1910) 
Identifying features-Asymmetrical facade,  

front porch with spindlework detailing,  
simple house form, often single-story

Second Empire Victorian (1855–1885) 
Identifying features-Mansard roof with dormer 

windows, eaves with decorative brackets

Colonial Revival (1880–1955) 
Identifying features-Symmetrical facade,  

one-story, full width front porch, classical front 
porch columns, hipped or gabled dormers  

usually present, two-story pilasters

Tudor Revival (1890–1940) 
Identifying features-Side-gabled, steeply pitched 

roof, half-timbering, overhanging second story, tall, 
narrow windows, prominent chimney, rounded  

or arched front door

Craftsman (1905–1930) 
Low-pitched gable roof, deep eaves,  

full-width front porch, exposed roof rafters, 
decorative beams or braces under roofline,  

full or partial width front porch

NOTE: 
This tour is 
intended to 
be a street 
side tour. 
Please do 
not enter 
any private 
property 
unless 
advised by 
Commission 
members.

Get a chance to hear historical information  
and living experience from homeowners. 

102

Item 18.



808 Washington St.  Built in 1904, this house is 
a Queen Anne style of the Free Classic subtype with 
double classical columns supporting the front porch 
roof indicating a colonial revival influence. The original 
porch has been restored to the front of the house based 
on a 1909 picture postcard of the home.The facade also 
features a front facing gable, conical tower, curved, 
leaded glass window. 

809 Washington St.  This home was built by 
Charles A Wise around 1874 in the Second Empire style. 
Originally this house had a mansard roof, typical of the 
Second Empire style. This type of roof was economical 
because there was no wasted space in the attic. 
Unfortunately the third floor was seriously damaged  
by fire and had to be removed. 

1007 Washington St.  This is a two story gable front 
and wing house with a single story front porch filling 
in the “L”. The square columns and elaborate flattened 
arch frieze between the columns indicate an Italianate 
influence. The bay window also indicates a subdued 
Italianate influence. The single windows on all elevations 
have pedimented heads with Victorian or Carpenter 
Gothic scrollwork. The front porch balustrade shows  
a Victorian influence with spindlework balusters.

920 Washington St.  An early version of the 
American Box type with hip roof and a flare at the eaves. 
Additional stylistic detail occurs at the fall away bay to 
the side, indicating a carry over from the Queen Anne 
style.  The single story front porch with spindlework 
columns and decorative wood tracery at the capitals  
are also typical of Queen Anne. 

1117 Washington St.  This house is in the Colonial 
Revival Style and was constructed in 1908 by Bley and 
Robinson for Samuel Orwell Bailey. This house has both 
a front gambrel roof and side gabled roof. The eave 
shows a kick, which is a defining feature of the Colonial 
Revival Dutch Style. The front porch with classically 
influenced columns set on elaborate piers is ticked 
under the main roof of the front facing gable. This  
gable exhibits a palladian window indicative of the 
later Colonial Styles and the Colonial Revival Style. 

1117 Clay St.  This home was built in 1905 in a 
distinctive Shingle Style with Richardson Romanesque, 
Queen Anne, and Oriental Influences. It retains a few 
elements of the late 19th century Queen Anne style, 
including the second story bay window and large 
veranda. The shingled wall and roof surfaces define  
the Shingle Style which is emphasized by the wide  
main entry porch Romanesque arch which is supported 
by shingled continuations. The circular cutout in the 
front porch arch supports are unique.

815 Washington St.  This two story Queen Anne 
house was built around 1895 by William Dugane and his 
wife Anna, and was considered to be one of the most 
beautiful in town. Notable is the two story corner tower 
with pyramidal roof capping a second story porch with 
delicate Vvictorian detail closely related to Eastlake 
ornamentation. The front entry porch is also delicately 
detailed in the same ornamentation style with spindle 
work columns, scrollwork frieze and balustrade as well  
as gable stick work.

1010 Washington St.  This is a classic American Four 
Square with a two-story, simple rectangular floor plan. 
The house has a hipped roof with flared eaves and similar 
hip roof dormers. The porch has classical columns and 
decorative porch skirting. This was a very popular style 
of house from the 1890’s through the 1930s and is named 
such because the first floor usually contained four rooms 
or squares (hall, parlor, dining room, and kitchen). 

1109 Clay St.  This house is a restrained example 
of the Queen Anne style, yet features many of the 
architectural details typical of that style. The full-width 
porch is supported by columns with decorative motifs, 
the fascia and top gable of the steeply pitched roof 
exhibit the decorative trim work typical of the style. 
This house was built ca. 1890, most likely by William 
and Mary (Wood) Christie, the first recorded residents 
who were living here as early as 1895.

822 Washington St.  This two story Queen Anne 
home was built around 1886 by Peter Melendy. The 
porch roof contains a front-gabled portion with lattice 
decoration which tends to signify the entrance to the 
porch. However, the entrance is actually at the porch 
corner which is likely a later modification. Leaded  
glass is still intact in the front door, dining room,  
and living room.

1017 Washington St.  This house was built by 
Edward Townsend during the 1878–1884 period. This 
house begins with a Queen Anne floor plan consisting of 
a main rectangle with low pitched hip roof and gabled 
side projections. The prominent brackets under the main 
roof eaves show an Italianate influence as do the heavy, 
pedimented window heads which continue partially 
down the side (a feature shared with Gothic Revival).  
This is one of Cedar Falls’ most distinctive houses.

1103 Clay St.  The house is a modified Tudor, 
exhibiting the decorative half-timbering, dominant 
chimney, and steeply pitched roof of that style and was 
built between 1930–1934 by John P. Berg and his wife, 
Edyth Schuneman Berg. Another feature of the home 
is the overhanging second story. John P. Berg worked 
as a druggist, in addition to serving in the Iowa Senate 
in 1934–1954.

903 Washington St.  Built in 1903 by Henry Gilkey, 
this two story house is very eclectic, exhibiting a variety 
of stylistic influences, from Prairie to Colonial Revival and 
even Craftsman style. The plan is basically American Four 
Square. It has wide, boxed eave overhangs (Prairie-Style), 
pedimented gables in the dormers (Colonial Revival), and 
projecting beams under the upper, overhanging rafters 
(Craftsman). This house has been occupied by the  
Board of Education, but was returned to a private 
residence in 1986. 

1022 Washington St.  This 2 ½ story, frame, single 
family home features a steeply pitched hipped roof. The 
roof configuration and general massing place this house 
within the Queen Anne style. Roger Leavitt purchased 
this property in 1889 or thereabouts. The house appears, 
stylistically, to date from the 1890s. The back room was 
added in the early 1900s. 

1020 Clay St.  This home was built ca. 1914 by  
Dr. Frank H. and Emma (Ross) Cutler. Dr. Cutler practiced 
medicine and surgery in Iowa for 45 years, 32 of those 
years in Cedar Falls, from 1895 to 1928. This stuccoed 
home is a fine example of the Craftsman Style which is 
characterized by low-pitched gabled roofs with deep 
eaves and porches with columns whose piers extend 
from roofline to ground level without breaks.

919 Washington St.  This home was built in 1945 
by Dr. R.L and Lillian Nielsen. It is aTudor Revival in half-
timber, stucco, and stone with the steep roofline typical 
of that style. The large lot is beautifully landscaped and 
features a courtyard, hidden from view behind large 
bushes for privacy. 

1107 Washington St.  This house was built in 
1876 and was Peter Melendy’s first house. This house 
is not purely Italianate as there are no brackets under 
the eaves or the two story portion. It has the feel of an 
Italianate house with a plan in the form of an elongated 
Greek cross. The side bay window has brackets that are 
definitive Italianate in character. The windows are both 
single and double versions with heavy crowned, flat 
lintels, classical in appearance and one of the optional 
stylistic features of Italianate. 

1021 Clay St.  This is one of the few Gothic Revival 
homes in Cedar Falls. This home was built by Fitzroy 
Sessions in 1867. The family lived in the home for an 
unknown number of years. It became the home of 
another prominent citizen, Roger Leavitt. Nine gables 
accent this home with scroll barge board and a steep 
roof outline. This brick one and a half story house has a 
t-shaped plan. Two wall dormers exist with details to 
match the main roofs. The original two porches facing 
11th St. are lost.

103

Item 18.



104

Item 18.



105

Item 18.



106

Item 18.



107

Item 18.



108

Item 18.



109

Item 18.



110

Item 18.



111

Item 18.



112

Item 18.



113

Item 18.



114

Item 18.



115

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

M   

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: February 20, 2023 

SUBJECT:    Request to Amend Contract with EMBARC (now Refugee & Immigrant 
 Voices in Action-RIVA) 

  
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified the 
City in mid-May of 2020 that a portion of the State’s CARES Act Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funds were anticipated to be proportionally allocated to 
Entitlement Communities through the Iowa Economic Development Authority (IEDA).  The 
City Council approved the contract with the IEDA in January of 2021.   
 
As part of the budget for the CDBG-CV2, the City allocated $115,000 for Service Agencies.  
Of that, EMBARC, Inc was awarded a grant of $40,000 to provide support to refugees and 
immigrants impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic through operating a helpline . Associated 
equipment and supplies purchase was also part of the grant.   
 
On February 2, 2023, the City received a request from RIVA (formerly EMBARC) to amend 
its contract with the City of Cedar Falls.  For various reasons, they were not able to initiate 
or complete their original grant request but continue to see a need for their services in the 
area.  The request is to raise awareness and promote public health services and resources 
available in Cedar Falls.  The request is attached.  RIVA proposes producing three two-
minute public health resource videos and accompanying fliers in at least three languages to 
help prevent, prepare for, or respond spread of COVID-19.  All CDBG-CV2 funds must be 
invoiced no later than May 1, 2023 for reimbursement. First Amendment to contract is also 
attached.   
 
This change will also require the City to amend the scope of work referenced in the State 
contract.  No other changes are proposed.   
 
The Housing Commission will review this item at their February 15, 2023 meeting.  Due to 
the very short timeframe remaining to utilize the CDBG-CV2 funds, staff recommends the 
City Council approve the RIVA (formerly EMBARC) contract.   
 
Staff is available for any questions.  
 
Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Community Development Director  
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

116

Item 19.



  2309 Euclid Avenue Des 

Moines, IA 50310 

 
 
 

To: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 

From: Henny Ohr, Director 

Date: February 2, 2023 

Re: Community Dev. Block Grant/ Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic security 
(CARES) Act 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Given the challenges of recruiting and managing interns, RIVA, formerly known as 
EMBARC, submits the following plan to meet CARES Act objectives.  
 
Objective:  Raise awareness and promote public health services and resources available 
in Cedar Falls in a linguistically and culturally appropriate manner.   
 
Output:  Produce three public health resource videos and accompanying fliers in at least 
three languages, in partnership with ethnic community-based organizations (ECBOs) and 
expert partner organizations. The topics of these videos will be based on local resources in 
Cedar Falls prioritized by the immigrant community. Script development will be in 
partnership with the service provider. Contractors for coordination, video production, and 
interpreters and translators will be recruited and managed by a RIVA staff member.  
 
Outcome: Evergreen videos for ongoing use. Videos dissemination and outreach to 
immigrant community in Cedar Falls through grassroots outreach. Tracking of views on 
social media platforms and assessment of value of videos through focus groups.   
 
Background:  Video outreach is a proven, effective strategy to spread targeted health 
information across a variety of communities. During the national Abbott Nutrition (Similac) 
infant formula recall issued by Abbott and the Centers for Disease Control in early 2022, 
EMBARC worked with Iowa Department of Public Health’s WIC program to release five 
language video announcements online. These videos were translated and delivered on-
camera by Burma community members, and included instructions on how to check if a 
family’s stock of infant formula was affected by the recall; what they should do with recalled 
packages; and how they can find safe alternative formulas for their babies. 
 
The Karenni language video was viewed more than 5,000 times alone, in nine U.S. states, 
after it was distributed on Facebook. The Karenni language community in the U.S. is 
generally pre-literate – unable to read or write in their native language – and has limited 
public health news sources available to them. Facebook reports that 53% of these viewers 
found the Karenni language video through Facebook’s share function. 
 
ESTIMATED TIME:   

● Fact gathering, collaborating and scripting (2 people): 4 hours 

● Review process (2 people): 2-4 hours  

● Translating and proofing video script (4 Interpreters x 2-3 hours, depending on script 

content and length):  

● Videography filming (1 videographer): 7- 10 hours 

117

Item 19.



Refugee and Immigrant Voices in Action 

○ Includes 1 interpreter for every language video produced (2 hour/per 

interpreter) 

● Video editing (1 video producer): 5-8+ hours (depending on complexity) 

● Outreach and dissemination and posting on social media platforms  (5-8 hrs) 

● Collection of data and organizing and conducting focus group evaluation (10-15 

hours) 

Total: 65 to 80 hours per video 

 
ESTIMATED BUDGET:  $12,600 per video (2 minute videos in 4 languages) 

 Interpreters at $30 to $50 per hour 

 Video producer/coordinator at $25 per hour 

 Videographer at $75 - $125 per hour 

 RIVA coordinator at $35 per hour 
 
 
_____________ 
Previously submitted August 2022 Plan 
 
1. Fourteen to twenty residents of Cedar Falls of immigrant or refugee heritage will 
gain paid work experience that improves their integration, long term prospects 
for workplace success, economic self-sufficiency, and income stability 
2. Performance Measures: Formal feedback on work-related competencies and a 
written reference. 

a. Distribute four existing student stipends for Spring 2022 
b. Distribute 10 to 16 stipends from Fall 2022 to Spring 2023 depending on 
internship hours and term. 
c. Note: COVID19 Hotline has transitioned to vaccine outreach, education, 
and access. 
 

 

 
 

  

118

Item 19.



 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED 

PROJECT 

 

       This First Amendment to the Subrecipient Agreement for Federally Funded 

Project is made and entered into this _____ day of ____________________, 2023, 

by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter “City”), and Refugee & 

Immigrant Voices in Action (RIVA)(formally known as Ethnic Minorities of Burma 

Advocacy and Resource Center (EMBARC) (hereinafter “Agency”). 

       WHEREAS, the City and the Agency entered into a certain Subrecipient 

Agreement for Federally Funded Project dated March 15, 2021 which established 

the terms and conditions to be used for preventing homelessness, by supporting 

internships for refugees and immigrants operating a helpline for persons that 

have be or will be impacted by COVID-9 pandemic occur through CDBG funds 

from CARES-CV2 (hereinafter the “Agreement”); and 

       WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, changes in the scope of 

services or changes in compensation may be made by written amendment; and 

       WHEREAS, the request to change the scope of how the funding was spent was 

received by the City on February 2, 2023; and 

      WHEREAS, amending the Agreement to benefit residents of Cedar Falls is an 

appropriate use of funds under the CARES Act and is in the best interest of the 

residents of Cedar Falls.       

       NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and 

agreements set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree 

as follows: 

1. Section 1 of the Agreement as amended by striking that section out in its 

entirety and substituting in lieu thereof the following: 
 

119

Item 19.



 
 

Section 1.  Funds Awarded. The Local Government shall award the 

Subrecipient $40,000 to implement the following CDBG approved project 

activities: to produce two to three two-minute public health resource 

videos and accompanying fliers in at least three languages to address 

social determinants of health, the disparities in awareness, 

and accessibility to essential needs and resources in Cedar Falls that was 

made apparent during COVID-19.   These videos will work to help prevent, 

prepare for, or respond spread of COVID-19. 

• The following deliverables are required with the signing of the 

 contract: 

• A Duplication of Benefits (DOB) Certification 

• Subrogation and Assignment Agreement 

 

• The following deliverables are required quarterly: 

• Quarterly report of Duplications of Benefits Certification 

• Quarterly performance Report 

• Each Individual received assistance CDBG-CV Duplication of 

Benefits (DOB) Worksheet. 

 

 

2. The Agency hereby acknowledges and agrees that all invoices for project 

costs reimbursement must be submitted to the City no later than May 1, 

2023. 

 

3. The City and Agency hereby acknowledge and agree that all of the terms 

and conditions of the Agreement including Exhibits, remain the same and 

are hereby ratified and confirmed, except as otherwise expressly amended 

in this First Amendment to Subrecipient Agreement for Federally Funded 

Project. 

 

120

Item 19.



 
 

       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Agency have executed this First Amendment 
to Subrecipient Agreement for Federally Funded Project at Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
effective as of the date first stated above.             

AGENCY:            CITY: 
 
REFUGEE & IMMIGRANT VOICES IN  

ACTION (RIVA)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

BY:______________________________       BY:____________________________ 

ATTEST:__________________________       ATTEST:________________________ 

DATE:   ___________________________       DATE:    _________________________ 

121

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

M   

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: February 20, 2023 

SUBJECT:   Amendment #3 to Contract with State Award CARES Act Community 
 Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2)  

 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
the City in mid-May of 2020 that a portion of the State’s CARES Act Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funds were anticipated to be proportionally 
allocated to Entitlement Communities through the Iowa Economic Development 
Authority (IEDA).  The City Council approved the contract with the IEDA in January of 
2021, initially to use $341,608.00 of the $369,432 in grant funds.  Two amendments 
have also been completed since that time.  In August 2021, we added activities to 
identify how we would utilize more of the grant funds.  The second amendment in April 
2022 made adjustments for sub-grantees (adding a service agency) and modified some 
equipment purchases by the City. 
 
On February 2, 2023, the City received a request from RIVA (formerly EMBARC) to 
amend its contract with the City of Cedar Falls.  Their original grant was to provide a 
helpline for support to refugees and immigrants impacted by the pandemic. For various 
reasons, they were not able to initiate or complete this.  Therefore, the request is to 
raise awareness and promote public health services and resources available in Cedar 
Falls.  RIVA proposes producing three two-minute public health resource videos and 
accompanying fliers in at least three languages to help prevent, prepare for, or respond 
spread of COVID-19.   
 
This request requires an amendment to the contract with the State to gain their approval 
of the proposal from RIVA.  Similar to our past amendments, there are no changes to 
the State contract nor are there changes in the funding amounts.  Below is a summary 
of the grant activity areas and funding allocated to them: 
   

 

Amount  Project Delivery   Total  

Service Agencies $ 134,800.00  $ 17,092.00  $ 151,892.00  

City $   83,446.71  $   8,342.00  $   91,788.71  

Schools $ 111,152.00 $ 14,592.00 $ 125,744.00 

   

$ 330,406.71 

122

Item 20.



 
 
Staff recommends approval of this amendment. 
Staff is available for any questions.  
 
Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Community Development Director  
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

123

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: February 13, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Temporary Easement 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3 lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project will require the acquisition of temporary easements from 
one-hundred twenty-nine (129) properties to complete construction. The owner of the 
property has accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

301 McDonald’s Real Estate Company 2515 Main St. Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The City will use a combination of General Obligation and Street Construction Funds for 
the design and right of way portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environmental, LLC, of Cedar Rapids, 
Iowa on July 19, 2021 for property acquisition and design services. Funds for this 
project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY23 - FY28 
under item number 128. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary 
documents and staff will complete the temporary easement acquisition process. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving this temporary 
easement and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

124

Item 21.



 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

125

Item 21.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

126

Item 21.

AndreasenL
Line



127

Item 21.



128

Item 21.



129

Item 21.



130

Item 21.



131

Item 21.



132

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: February 13, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Warranty Deed 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to University 
Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3-lane roadway. Included in the project will be the 
intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th Street which 
will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic safety and flow 
in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to the water main, 
sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous roadway items. The 
project required partial acquisition for new city ROW from nine (9) properties. In addition, 
two (2) total take acquisitions were required to accommodate the new roundabout at the 
12th/Main intersection. The City has closed on the following acquisitions: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

29 2C Properties, LLC 2018 Main Street Partial 

30 2C Properties, LLC 2010 Main Street Partial 

41 T&R Rentals, LLC 1930 Main Street Partial  

45 Gracie Mae Properties, LC 103 E 18th Street Partial 

156 Casey’s Marketing Company 601 Main Street Partial 

205 Tigerhawk Rentals, LLC 1209 Main Street Partial 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the warranty deed for this 
property acquisition. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

133

Item 22.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

134

Item 22.

AndreasenL
Line



135

Item 22.



136

Item 22.



137

Item 22.



138

Item 22.



139

Item 22.



140

Item 22.



141

Item 22.



142

Item 22.



143

Item 22.



144

Item 22.



145

Item 22.



146

Item 22.



147

Item 22.



148

Item 22.



149

Item 22.



150

Item 22.



151

Item 22.



152

Item 22.



153

Item 22.



154

Item 22.



155

Item 22.



156

Item 22.



157

Item 22.



158

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: February 10, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Various Intersection Improvements 
  City Project Number: TS-000-3294      
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, February 10, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the 
Various Intersection Improvements. A total of one (1) bid was received: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $724,625.00 

K&W Electric $728,796.05 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $724,625.00. K&W Electric of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $728,796.05. Attached is a bid tabulation 
for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from K&W Electric in the amount of $728,796.05. On March 6, 2023, the 
Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer   
 
 

159

Item 23.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010-D-3 Topsoil, Off-site CY 674 $35.00 $23,590.00 $32.00 $21,568.00

2 2010-E Excavation, Class 10 CY 2199 $35.00 $76,965.00 $22.00 $48,378.00

3 8010-A Traffic Signal LS 1 $286,000.00 $286,000.00 $281,000.00 $281,000.00

4 8020-B Painted Pavement Markings, Waterborne STA 5.77 $450.00 $2,596.50 $310.00 $1,788.70

5 8020-G Painted Symbols and Legends EA 4 $150.00 $600.00 $135.00 $540.00

6 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $11,650.00 $11,650.00

7 8940-A Sign Panels SF 38.3 $60.00 $2,298.00 $23.00 $880.90

8 8940-B Sign Posts LF 88 $90.00 $7,920.00 $23.00 $2,024.00

9 8940-C Removal of Sign EA 4 $150.00 $600.00 $75.00 $300.00

10 8940-D Removal and Reinstallation of Sign EA 4 $500.00 $2,000.00 $250.00 $1,000.00

11 9010-A Convetional Seeding, Fertlizing, and Mulching, Native Seed AC 0.08 $34,000.00 $2,720.00 $6,900.00 $552.00

12 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 1 Seed Mixture AC 0.41 $5,000.00 $2,050.00 $13,725.00 $5,627.25

13 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 2 Seed Mixture AC 0.21 $4,000.00 $840.00 $13,725.00 $2,882.25

14 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 4 Seed Mixture AC 0.21 $3,500.00 $735.00 $4,575.00 $960.75

15 9030-B Plants, Lump Sum, With Warranty LS 1 $41,000.00 $41,000.00 $23,950.00 $23,950.00

16 9030-999-A Mulch, Shredded Bark CY 40 $270.00 $10,800.00 $139.00 $5,560.00

17 9030-999-B Mulch, Rock CY 8 $432.00 $3,456.00 $253.00 $2,024.00

18 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $500.00 $500.00

19 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 12" LF 846 $4.00 $3,384.00 $3.50 $2,961.00

20 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 846 $1.25 $1,057.50 $0.65 $549.90

21 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 2C SY 403 $5.00 $2,015.00 $2.10 $846.30

22 9040-N-1 Silt Fence LF 285 $3.00 $855.00 $3.70 $1,054.50

23 9040-N-2 Silt Fence Removal of Sediment LF 285 $0.60 $171.00 $1.05 $299.25

24 9040-N-3 Silt Fence Removal of Device LF 285 $1.20 $342.00 $1.05 $299.25

25 11010-A Monument Preservation and Replacement LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00

26 11020-A Mobilization LS 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $5,250.00 $5,250.00

27 11050-A Concrete Washout LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $250.00 $250.00

28 000-9999-A Monument EA 8 $18,000.00 $144,000.00 $33,600.00 $268,800.00

29 000-9999-B Limestone Edging, 6" WIDE TON 22 $915.00 $20,130.00 $850.00 $18,700.00

30 000-9999-C Electrical & Lighting LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $17,300.00 $17,300.00

$724,625.00 $728,796.05

Engineer Estimate KW Electric Inc.

Base Bid Total:

Various Intersection Improvements Bid Tab

160

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: February 20, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 
  City Project Number: SA-002-3182 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, February 10, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the Oak 
Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. One (1) bid was received, with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., the only bidder: 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $442,200.00 

Peterson Contracting, Inc. $735,520.00 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $442,200.00. Peterson Contractors, Inc. of 
Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the only bid in the amount of $735,520.00. Attached is a bid 
tabulation for your reference. 
 

  
Picture from Friday, February 10th, 2023 of the Collapsed aerial line (left), 
and the tarped temporary line attached to a temporary utility pole (center). 

161

Item 24.



This bid opening was the third bid attempt to address the failed aerial sanitary sewer 
line that collapsed in November 2018. Water Reclamation staff has maintained the line 
weekly from 2018 till 2020 and every other week from 2021 to today. In July and 
November of 2019, the temporary sanitary line separated requiring the City to seek 
outside private contracting both times to fix the temporary line. Since the collapse in 
2018, the City has had to issue three compliance letters with the Iowa DNR regarding 
cleanup efforts, bypass pumping reports, and status of the temporary line. 
 
With the significant ongoing staff time, costs associated with the temporary fix, and to 
address the Iowa DNR’s concerns, the Engineering Division is recommends accepting 
the low bid from Peterson Contractors, Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa  in the amount of 
$735,520.00 for the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project, the Contract, Bonds, and 
Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Tyler Griffin, Interim Water Reclamation Manager 

162

Item 24.



City of Cedar Falls 

Public Works Department

Engineering Division

ITEM

NO.
ITEM CODE ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing LS 1  $               5,000.00  $                5,000.00  $    15,000.00  $              15,000.00 
2 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site CY 190  $                    13.00  $                2,470.00  $           40.00  $                7,600.00 
3 2010-G Subgrade Preparation SY 276  $                      2.00  $                   552.00  $             5.00  $                1,380.00 
4 2010-I Subbase, 12" Modified SY 191  $                    16.00  $                3,056.00  $           25.00  $                4,775.00 
5 2010-J-1 Removal of Structure LS 1  $             20,000.00  $              20,000.00  $      7,500.00  $                7,500.00 
6 2010-L Compaction Testing LS 1  $               6,000.00  $                6,000.00  $      2,000.00  $                2,000.00 
7 3010-C Trench Foundation TON 18  $                    26.00  $                   468.00  $           40.00  $                   720.00 
8 3010-D Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material CY 119  $                    31.00  $                3,689.00  $           75.00  $                8,925.00 
9 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing LS 1  $               3,000.00  $                3,000.00  $      1,500.00  $                1,500.00 

10 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC, LF 166  $                    70.00  $              11,620.00  $         250.00  $              41,500.00 
11 4010-C-1 Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenched, HDPE, 2" LF 156  $                    30.00  $                4,680.00  $           50.00  $                7,800.00 
12 4010-C-2 Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenchless, HDPE, 2" LF 300  $                    75.00  $              22,500.00  $           50.00  $              15,000.00 
13 4010-D-1 Sanitary Sewer Force Main with Casing Pipe, LF 42  $                  120.00  $                5,040.00  $         350.00  $              14,700.00 
14 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, SDR 23.5, 4" LF 24  $                  100.00  $                2,400.00  $         850.00  $              20,400.00 
15 4010-H Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types and Sizes LF 277  $                    10.00  $                2,770.00  $           45.00  $              12,465.00 
16 4010-I Sanitary Sewer Cleanout EA 2  $               2,400.00  $                4,800.00  $      4,000.00  $                8,000.00 
17 4010-L Sanitary Sewer Abandonment, Fill and Plug LF 50  $                    50.00  $                2,500.00  $           35.00  $                1,750.00 
18 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" LF 20  $                    80.00  $                1,600.00  $         150.00  $                3,000.00 
19 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 15" LF 20  $                    60.00  $                1,200.00  $           60.00  $                1,200.00 
20 4040-A Subdrain, Type 1, 6" LF 50  $                    16.00  $                   800.00  $           20.00  $                1,000.00 
21 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6" LF 66  $                    40.00  $                2,640.00  $           85.00  $                5,610.00 
22 5010-C-1 Water Main Fittings, 6" EA 4  $                  400.00  $                1,600.00  $         850.00  $                3,400.00 
23 5010-H Water Main Removal, 6" LF 51  $                    51.00  $                2,601.00  $           45.00  $                2,295.00 
24 6010-A Manhole, SW-303, 48" EA 1  $               5,000.00  $                5,000.00  $    75,000.00  $              75,000.00 
25 6010-C-1 Internal Drop Connection EA 1  $               1,000.00  $                1,000.00  $      5,000.00  $                5,000.00 
26 6010-C-2 External Drop Connection EA 1  $               1,000.00  $                1,000.00  $      7,500.00  $                7,500.00 
27 6010-G Connection to Existing Manhole EA 1  $               1,500.00  $                1,500.00  $      4,000.00  $                4,000.00 
28 6010-H Remove Manhole EA 2  $               2,000.00  $                4,000.00  $      5,000.00  $              10,000.00 
29 7010-A Pavement, PCC,  7" SY 171  $                  100.00  $              17,100.00  $           70.00  $              11,970.00 
30 7021-A-0 HMA Overlay TON 28.1  $                  120.00  $                3,372.00  $         200.00  $                5,620.00 
31 7030-A Removal of Sidewalk SY 61  $                    10.00  $                   610.00  $           15.00  $                   915.00 
32 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" SY 61  $                    80.00  $                4,880.00  $           50.00  $                3,050.00 
33 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" SY 46  $                    60.00  $                2,760.00  $           60.00  $                2,760.00 
34 7040-H Pavement Removal SY 216  $                    20.00  $                4,320.00  $           15.00  $                3,240.00 
35 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 1  $               3,000.00  $                3,000.00  $      2,000.00  $                2,000.00 
36 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing,  and AC 0.24  $               5,000.00  $                1,200.00  $    25,000.00  $                6,000.00 
37 9020-A Sod SQ 42  $                    75.00  $                3,150.00  $         130.00  $                5,460.00 
38 9030-D Plants with Warranty LS 1  $               2,945.00  $                2,945.00  $      2,500.00  $                2,500.00 
39 9030-999-A Mulch, Shredded Bark SF 635  $                      2.50  $                1,587.50  $             1.50  $                   952.50 
40 9030-999-B Landscape Boulders EA 5  $                  350.00  $                1,750.00  $           75.00  $                   375.00 
41 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 1  $               2,000.00  $                2,000.00  $      3,000.00  $                3,000.00 
42 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 12" LF 1,560  $                      3.00  $                4,680.00  $             6.00  $                9,360.00 
43 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 1,560  $                      1.00  $                1,560.00  $             1.50  $                2,340.00 
44 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 4 SY 245  $                      2.50  $                   612.50  $           11.50  $                2,817.50 
45 9040-O-1 Stabilized Construction Entrance SY 94  $                      9.00  $                   846.00  $           35.00  $                3,290.00 
46 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device, Filter Sock EA 2  $                    70.00  $                   140.00  $         250.00  $                   500.00 
47 9040-T-2 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 2  $                    70.00  $                   140.00  $           50.00  $                   100.00 
48 9999-A Lift Station Column LS 1  $             25,000.00  $              25,000.00  $    60,000.00  $              60,000.00 
49 11,020-A Mobilization LS 1  $             36,512.00  $              36,512.00  $    50,000.00  $              50,000.00 
50 11,050-A Concrete Washout LS 1  $               1,000.00  $                1,000.00  $         250.00  $                   250.00 
51 260000-01 Electrical LS 1  $             10,000.00  $              10,000.00  $    20,000.00  $              20,000.00 
52 333200-01 Lift Station, Complete LS 1  $           148,981.00  $            148,981.00  $  250,000.00  $            250,000.00 

Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement
Contract Number SA-002-3182

Bid Date: 02/10/2023 2:00PM

Engineer's Estimate Petersons Contractors Inc.

735,520.00$                                  

SUBTOTAL (ROUNDED):    $ 402,000.00

CONTINGEN 10%:    $   40,200.00

TOTAL:     $ 442,200.00

163

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: February 20, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3316 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Specifications and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, March 6, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project, and Monday, March 13, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. as the date and 
time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be 
published by Friday, February 24, 2023. The Specifications will be ready for distribution 
to contractors on Friday, February 24, 2023, allowing for two (2) weeks of review before 
contract letting. 
 

This project consists of installing a cured in place liner within existing 8-inch diameter 
sewer lines in selected areas of the City. The total project involves approximately 6,147 
linear feet and 99 sewer service taps. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $235,157.00. The project 
will be funded by Sewer Rental Funds.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Specifications and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

164

Item 25.



ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch L.F. $31.00 6147.0 $190,557.00

2 Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconection EACH $325.00 99.0 $32,175.00

3 Grouting Service Laterals Each $75.00 99.0 $7,425.00

4 Mobilization L.S. $5,000.00 1.0 $5,000.00

$235,157.00TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

AND QUANTITIES

FEB 2023

2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation

Project
CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3316

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

165

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: February 13, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Street Construction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3299 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Street Construction Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, March 6th, 2023, at 7:00pm as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Monday, March 13th, 2023, at 2pm as the date and time 
for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published 
by Sunday, February 26th, 2023. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution 
to contractors on Tuesday, February 21st, 2023, via QuestCDN (reference #8397694), 
allowing more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project involves the construction of portions of two (2) city streets totaling 0.47 miles. 
Work will include 8,778 SV. of pavement removal and replacement, subgrade 
preparation, 2,040 LF. of storm sewer, 27 new storm sewer intakes, 2655 LF. of water 
main replacement, water main services, 2,672 LF. of new subdrain, replacement of 
driveway approaches and pedestrian ramps, modifications to existing storm sewer 
intakes, and replacement of signage and striping.  
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $2,530,011.15. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, Sanitary Sewer 
Rental Fund, and General Obligation Bond.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Street 
Construction Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

166

Item 26.



ITEM # ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $30.00 514 $15,420.00

2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. $15.00 3278 $49,170.00

3 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. $30.00 20 $600.00

4 2010-108-F-0 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION (CORE OUT) C.Y. $15.00 200 $3,000.00

5 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION S.Y. $1.00 9834 $9,834.00

6 2010-108-H-0 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID TENSAR TX-160 S.Y. $9.00 5663 $50,967.00

7 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 12 IN. S.Y. $20.00 9834 $196,680.00

8 3010-108-D-0 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TONS $32.00 2500 $80,000.00

9 4010-108-A-1 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN., TRUSS L.F. $60.00 331 $19,860.00

10 4010-108-E-1 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, TRENCHED, PVC, 4 IN., (SDR-23.5) L.F. $60.00 200 $12,000.00

11 4010-108-H-1 REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER L.F. $10.00 331 $3,310.00

12 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE L.F. $65.00 1267 $82,355.00

13 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. $90.00 158 $14,220.00

14 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. HDPE L.F. $75.00 109 $8,175.00

15 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. $100.00 118 $11,800.00

16 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. HDPE  L.F. $80.00 288 $23,040.00

17 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. $105.00 100 $10,500.00

18 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH $500.00 1 $500.00

19 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN.(NON-SUBDRAIN) L.F. $10.00 1431 $14,310.00

20 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER (SUBDRAIN) L.F. $3.00 1930 $5,790.00

21 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. $12.00 2672 $32,064.00

22 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, OUTLET, 6 IN. C.M.P. EACH $275.00 15 $4,125.00

23 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, SUMP PUMP TAP EACH $350.00 56 $19,600.00

24 4040-108-A-0 FIELD TILE, 4 IN. TO 8 IN., FIELD REPAIR L.F. $20.00 20 $400.00

25 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 4" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. $70.00 20 $1,400.00

26 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 6" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. $75.00 60 $4,500.00

27 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. $80.00 2575 $206,000.00

28 5010-108-C-2 FITTINGS, DUCTILE IRON LBS. $12.00 6300 $75,600.00

29 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EACH $1,900.00 26 $49,400.00

30 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EACH $2,750.00 28 $77,000.00

31 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 4" EACH $150.00 10 $1,500.00

32 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 6" EACH $175.00 25 $4,375.00

33 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 8" EACH $185.00 52 $9,620.00

34 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 4" EACH $160.00 1 $160.00

35 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 8" EACH $180.00 39 $7,020.00

36 5010-XX-3 8" NITRILE GASKETS EACH $170.00 43 $7,310.00

37 5020-108-A-0 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH $2,500.00 13 $32,500.00

38 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH $5,500.00 9 $49,500.00

39 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH $600.00 2 $1,200.00

40 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH $1,300.00 5 $6,500.00

41 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48" DIA. EACH $4,600.00 6 $27,600.00

42 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48" DIA. EACH $7,000.00 5 $35,000.00

43 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH $6,500.00 4 $26,000.00

44 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH $8,000.00 10 $80,000.00

45 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE B EACH $6,500.00 1 $6,500.00

46 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE D EACH $8,000.00 11 $88,000.00

47 6010-108-F-0 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR (CFD.07, "MR. MANHOLE") EACH $3,000.00 4 $12,000.00

48 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH $750.00 18 $13,500.00

49 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF SANITARY MANHOLES EACH $1,200.00 5 $6,000.00

50 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $52.00 2640 $137,280.00

51 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 8 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $55.00 6138 $337,590.00

52 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. $10.00 922 $9,220.00

53 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $10.00 34 $340.00

54 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $65.00 29 $1,885.00

55 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $100.00 5 $500.00

56 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS S.F. $51.00 8 $408.00

57 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $60.00 922 $55,320.00

58 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS $30.00 40 $1,200.00

59 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. $300.00 20 $6,000.00

60 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, PCC S.Y. $9.00 8778 $79,002.00

61 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, ACC S.Y. $9.00 8778 $79,002.00

62 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. $90.00 27 $2,430.00

63 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH $80.00 7 $560.00

64 8020-XX-1 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECIEVER) EACH $350.00 28 $9,800.00

65 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $50,000.00 1 $50,000.00

66 9020-108-A-0 SOD S.F. $0.90 27761 $24,984.90

67 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. $2.25 4867 $10,950.75

68 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. $0.50 4867 $2,433.50

69 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH $150.00 26 $3,900.00

70 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH $50.00 26 $1,300.00

71 10010-108-A-3 DEMOLITION OF BUILDING STRUCTURES (STAIRS) L.S. $5,000.00 1 $5,000.00

72 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. $200,000.00 1 $200,000.00

73 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00

TOTAL STREET RECONSTRUCTION $1,961,256.15

TOTAL SANITARY SEWER RECONSTRUCTION $35,170.00

TOTAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT $533,585.00

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE $2,530,011.15

2023 STREET CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NUMBER RC-000-3230

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS & QUANTITIES

167

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: February 13, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1 
  City Project Number: RC-092-3271 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, March 6th, 2023 at 7:00pm as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Monday, March 13th, 2023, at 2pm as the date and time 
for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published 
by Sunday, February 26th, 2023. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution 
to contractors on Tuesday, February 21st, 2023 via QuestCDN (reference #8391216), 
allowing more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project will reconstruct Timber Drive from Grand Avenue to Greenwood Avenue and 
West Ridgewood Drive from (and including part of) Greenwood Avenue to Cherry Lane. 
Work includes reconstruction of water main, storm and sanitary sewers, slope repairs, 
installation of new 8” subdrain, asphalt pavement with concrete curb and/or edging, and 
concrete intersections. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $3,964,626.38. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, Sanitary Sewer 
Rental Fund, and General Obligation Bond.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

168

Item 27.



 Engineer's 

Estimate  

Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Total Unit Price Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Total

1 2010-108A CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 249.6 44 293.6 150.00$             37,440.00$             -$                    -$                    6,600.00$          44,040.00$                   

2 2010-108B CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC 0.46 0.01 0.47 60,000.00$        27,600.00$             -$                    -$                    600.00$             28,200.00$                   

3 2010-108B GRUBBING (BY AREA) AC 1 1 30,000.00$        30,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    30,000.00$                   

4 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED CY 656 75 731 30.00$               19,680.00$             -$                    -$                    2,250.00$          21,930.00$                   

5 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED, SLOPE REPAIR CY 1050 1050 28.00$               29,400.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    29,400.00$                   

6 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE CY 3249 152 3401 20.00$               64,980.00$             -$                    -$                    3,040.00$          68,020.00$                   

7 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 4395 4395 12.00$               52,740.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    52,740.00$                   

8 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, BORROW,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 7978 7978 20.00$               159,560.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    159,560.00$                 

9 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 1565 1565 20.00$               31,300.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    31,300.00$                   

10 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 13 CY 10 10 45.00$               450.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    450.00$                         

11 2010-108G SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 6913 444 7357 2.50$                 17,282.50$             -$                    -$                    1,110.00$          18,392.50$                   

12 2010-108I SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 100 100 8.00$                 800.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    800.00$                         

13 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 6 IN. SY 518.3 518.3 23.00$               11,920.90$             -$                    -$                    -$                    11,920.90$                   

14 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 12 IN. SY 6913 444 7357 17.00$               117,521.00$           -$                    -$                    7,548.00$          125,069.00$                 

15 2010-108K REMOVALS, SIGN STRUCTURE EACH 1 1 200.00$             200.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    200.00$                         

16 2010-108M COMPACTION TESTING LS 1 1 100,000.00$      100,000.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    100,000.00$                 

17 3010-108D REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TON 100 100 30.00$               3,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

18 4010-108A

SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL 

CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 8 IN. LF 1839 77 1916 90.00$               -$                        -$                    165,510.00$      6,930.00$          172,440.00$                 

19 4010-108C

SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 

POLY WRAPPED, 8 IN. LF 755 755 120.00$             -$                        -$                    90,600.00$        -$                    90,600.00$                   

20 4010-108E SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LF 440 10 450 130.00$             -$                        -$                    57,200.00$        1,300.00$          58,500.00$                   

21 4010-108 SANITARY SEWER PIPE INSULATION LF 104 104 35.00$               -$                        -$                    3,640.00$          -$                    3,640.00$                     

22 4010-108H REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER LF 2037 301 2338 15.00$               30,555.00$             -$                    -$                    4,515.00$          35,070.00$                   

23 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 584 584 100.00$             58,400.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    58,400.00$                   

24 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 401 401 100.00$             40,100.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    40,100.00$                   

25 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. LF 128 128 120.00$             15,360.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    15,360.00$                   

26 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 30 IN. LF 122 122 130.00$             15,860.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    15,860.00$                   

27 4020-108D REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, RCP, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 334 334 20.00$               6,680.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    6,680.00$                     

28 4030-108B 18" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 1 1,600.00$          1,600.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,600.00$                     

29 4030-108B 24" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 4 4 1,750.00$          7,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    7,000.00$                     

30 4030-108B 30" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 1 2,250.00$          2,250.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,250.00$                     

31 4030-108C RCP APRON FOOTINGS 4030.221 EACH 6 6 2,000.00$          12,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    12,000.00$                   

32 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED PLASTIC PIPE, TYPE SP, 8 IN. DIA. LF 3946 174.7 4120.7 20.00$               78,920.00$             -$                    -$                    3,494.00$          82,414.00$                   

33 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, 6 IN. DIA. DR-303, TYPE 11 LF 995.7 995.7 15.00$               14,935.50$             -$                    -$                    -$                    14,935.50$                   

34 CFD.01 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, CFD.01 EACH 31 1 32 650.00$             20,150.00$             -$                    -$                    650.00$             20,800.00$                   

35 4040-108D SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, 4040.233 EACH 1 1 650.00$             650.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    650.00$                         

36 4040-108E SUBDRAIN TAP, 6" EACH 24 2 26 600.00$             14,400.00$             -$                    -$                    1,200.00$          15,600.00$                   

37 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 8 IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 2777.3 2777.3 130.00$             -$                        361,049.00$       -$                    -$                    361,049.00$                 

38 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 6IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 5 5 120.00$             -$                        600.00$              -$                    -$                    600.00$                         

39 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 4IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 56.9 56.9 130.00$             -$                        7,397.00$           -$                    -$                    7,397.00$                     

40 5010-108C FITTINGS BY WEIGHT, DUCTILE IRON LBS 6343.4 709.8 7053.2 30.00$               -$                        190,302.00$       21,294.00$        -$                    211,596.00$                 

41 5010-108D WATER SERVICE EACH 547 547 110.00$             -$                        60,170.00$         -$                    -$                    60,170.00$                   

42 5010-108F WATERMAIN ABANDONMENT, CAP EACH 19 19 1,300.00$          -$                        24,700.00$         -$                    -$                    24,700.00$                   

43 5010-108H WATERMAIN REMOVAL LF 120 120 25.00$               -$                        3,000.00$           -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

44 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 4 IN EACH 1 1 3,000.00$          -$                        3,000.00$           -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

45 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN EACH 11 11 3,250.00$          -$                        35,750.00$         -$                    -$                    35,750.00$                   

46 5020-108C FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 8 8 9,500.00$          -$                        76,000.00$         -$                    -$                    76,000.00$                   

47 5020-108J HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, REMOVAL EA 9 9 1,500.00$          -$                        13,500.00$         -$                    -$                    13,500.00$                   

48 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 48 IN. EACH 14 2 16 6,500.00$          -$                        -$                    91,000.00$        13,000.00$        104,000.00$                 

49 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 60 IN. EACH 4 1 5 8,000.00$          -$                        -$                    32,000.00$        8,000.00$          40,000.00$                   

50 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 72 IN. EACH 1 1 9,000.00$          -$                        -$                    9,000.00$          -$                    9,000.00$                     

51 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 48 IN. EACH 4 4 6,500.00$          26,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    26,000.00$                   

52 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 60 IN. EACH 1 1 7,000.00$          7,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    7,000.00$                     

53 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 60 IN. EACH 1 1 10,250.00$        10,250.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    10,250.00$                   

54 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 72 IN. EACH 1 1 11,000.00$        11,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    11,000.00$                   

55 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.505 EACH 13 13 8,500.00$          110,500.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    110,500.00$                 

56 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.510 EACH 1 1 12,000.00$        12,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    12,000.00$                   

57 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.513 EACH 2 2 9,000.00$          18,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    18,000.00$                   

58 6010-108C DROP CONNECTION SANITARY SEWER, 8 IN., EXTERNAL EACH 3 3 7,200.00$          -$                        -$                    21,600.00$        -$                    21,600.00$                   

59 6010-108H REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 2 14 2 18 1,250.00$          2,500.00$               -$                    17,500.00$        2,500.00$          22,500.00$                   

60 7010-108A PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C-4, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 7 IN. SY 581 581 75.00$               43,575.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    43,575.00$                   

61 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, SLOPED, 4 IN. LF 2854 174 5200 50.00$               260,000.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    260,000.00$                 

62 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, DROPPED, 0 IN. LF 2193 174 2367 50.00$               109,650.00$           -$                    -$                    8,700.00$          118,350.00$                 

63 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6" PCC SY 232.5 232.5 60.00$               13,950.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    13,950.00$                   

64 7020-108B 7" HMA ST SY 3612.1 233 3845.1 80.00$               288,968.00$           -$                    -$                    18,640.00$        307,608.00$                 

65 7030-108A REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 518.3 14 532.3 9.00$                 4,664.70$               -$                    -$                    126.00$             4,790.70$                     

66 7030-108H DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 518.3 14 532.3 51.00$               26,433.30$             -$                    -$                    714.00$             27,147.30$                   

67 7030-108H CLASS A ROADSTONE TON 21.4 21.4 42.00$               898.80$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    898.80$                         

68 7040-108H REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 5640.6 306.3 5946.9 8.00$                 45,124.80$             -$                    -$                    2,450.40$          47,575.20$                   

69 2505-4008120 REMOVAL OF GUARDRAIL LF 76 76 10.00$               760.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    760.00$                         

70 8030-108A TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 1 25,000.00$        25,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    25,000.00$                   

71 2401-6745765 LIGHT POLES, REMOVE EACH 2 2 650.00$             1,300.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,300.00$                     

72 2523-0000100

LIGHT POLES, 28' METAL POLE W/ DIRECT BURIED AND 6' 

MAST ARM EACH 3 3 6,000.00$          18,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    18,000.00$                   

73 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 50 50 15.00$               750.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    750.00$                         

74 2528-2518000 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 19 2 21 100.00$             1,900.00$               -$                    -$                    200.00$             2,100.00$                     

75 8040-108B TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 82.7 82.7 25.00$               2,067.50$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,067.50$                     

76 8040-108D PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 110 110 30.00$               3,300.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,300.00$                     

77 8040-108G PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE ANCHOR EACH 11 11 40.00$               440.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    440.00$                         

78 8040-108I REMOVE & REINSTALL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 8 8 300.00$             2,400.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,400.00$                     

79 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 4 4 200.00$             800.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    800.00$                         

80 9010-108D WATERING MGAL 100 100 160.00$             16,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    16,000.00$                   

81 9010-108B

SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRO-

SEEDING, TYPE 4 ACRE 1.2 1.2 10,000.00$        12,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    12,000.00$                   

82 9010-108B

SEEDING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, 

WILDFLOWER SEED ACRE 1.5 0.1 1.6 10,000.00$        15,000.00$             -$                    -$                    1,000.00$          16,000.00$                   

83 9020-108A SOD SQ 179 29 208 75.00$               13,425.00$             -$                    -$                    2,175.00$          15,600.00$                   

84 9040-108E TEMPORARY RECP, TYPE 3B SY 6204 96 6300 4.00$                 24,816.00$             -$                    -$                    384.00$             25,200.00$                   

85 9040-108F PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. LF 4928 302 5230 2.00$                 9,856.00$               -$                    -$                    604.00$             10,460.00$                   

86 9040-108F

REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT 

CONTROL DEVICE LF 4928 302 5230 0.65$                 3,203.20$               -$                    -$                    196.30$             3,399.50$                     

87 9040-108J

REVETMENT, CLASS E RIP RAP APRON (& ENG.

FABRIC) FOR PIPE OUTLET, 9040.111 TON 230 230 45.00$               10,350.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    10,350.00$                   

88 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, INSTALLATION LF 1075 1075 2.25$                 2,418.75$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,418.75$                     

89 9040-108N

SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL OF 

DEVICE LF 1075 1075 1.00$                 1,075.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,075.00$                     

90 9040-108O CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY 55 55 70.00$               3,850.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,850.00$                     

91 9040-108R TURF REINFORCEMENT MATTING (TYPE 2) SQ 4 4 70.00$               280.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    280.00$                         

92 9040-108T

INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN.

12 IN EACH 13 13 85.00$               1,105.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,105.00$                     

93 9040-108T

MAINTENANCE OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT 

CONTROL DEVICE

CONTROL DEVICE EACH 13 13 20.00$               260.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    260.00$                         

94 9070 REMOVAL OF EXISTING LANDSCAPING LS 1 1 2 5,000.00$          5,000.00$               -$                    -$                    5,000.00$          10,000.00$                   

95 9070 REMOVE AND REINSTALL RETAINING WALL, AS PER PLAN LS 1 1 3,000.00$          3,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

96 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER LF 8 8 10.00$               80.00$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    80.00$                           

UnitItem Description Item CodeItem No.

Engineer's Estimate of Costs
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project

Cedar Falls Project No.: RC-092-3271

AECOM Project No.: 60672593

2/3/2023

 Estimated Quantities  Estimated Costs 

169

Item 27.



97 2602-0000510

MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE 

SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 1 1 20.00$               20.00$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    20.00$                           

98 2602-0000520

REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT 

FILTER EACH 1 1 20.00$               20.00$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    20.00$                           

99 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 28 28 135.00$             3,780.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,780.00$                     

100 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 28 28 40.00$               1,120.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,120.00$                     

101 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OR GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 28 28 40.00$               1,120.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,120.00$                     

102 11020-108A MOBILIZATION LS 1 1 150,000.00$      150,000.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    150,000.00$                 

103 11030 -108A MAILBOX, REMOVE AND REINSTALL EA 29 29 200.00$             5,800.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    5,800.00$                     

104 11050-108A CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 1 3,000.00$          3,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

ALTERNATE #1 Bid Items -$                    

105 4010-108A SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHLESS, PVC, 8 IN. LF 206 206 150.00$             -$                        -$                    -$                    30,900.00$        30,900.00$                   

106 4010-108I SANITARY SEWER CLEAN OUT EACH 1 1 650.00$             -$                        -$                    -$                    650.00$             650.00$                         

Division 1- Roadway Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Total

Division 2 - CFU Water Main 2,356,545.95$        775,468.00$       509,344.00$      134,476.70$      3,775,834.65$              

Division 3 - Sanitary Sewer

Division 4 - Alternate #1 Contingency (5%) 188,791.73$                 

Engineer's Estimate of Construction Costs 3,830,149.68$              

Engineer's Estimate of Construction Costs (w-Alt #1) 3,964,626.38$              

170

Item 27.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: February 13, 2023 

SUBJECT:      Sale of Lot 15, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, 
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 2.05 acres more 
or less). 

 
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for March 6, 2023 to 
address the proposed transfer of the above referenced City owned real estate to 
McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC. The proposed project would consist of a 
new 8,500+ square foot facility to be constructed along Rail Way in the Northern Cedar 
Falls Industrial Park. Additional information pertaining to the land transaction and the 
Agreement for Private Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

171

Item 28.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 

ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND MCDONALD 

CONSTRUCTION & REMODELING, LLC; AND (2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE 

OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE TO MCDONALD CONSTRUCTION & 

REMODELING, LLC, PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from 

McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to 

enter into a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 15, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, City of Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 2.04 acres more or less); 

 

and  

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would 

be established at an amount not less than $883,000.00 for a period through December 31, 

2034; 

 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 

of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

172

Item 28.



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 6th  day of March, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council 

Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consider 

entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC, and to consider conveyance of the Development Property 

to the Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed 

agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to 

publish said notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this 20th day of February, 2023. 

 

 

   

  Robert M. Green, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

173

Item 28.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and legally 

adopted by the City Council of said City on the 20th day of February, 2023. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

  

 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

174

Item 28.



175

Item 29.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 2/20/23 COUNCIL MEETING



176

Item 29.



177

Item 29.



178

Item 29.



179

Item 29.



180

Item 29.



181

Item 29.



182

Item 29.



183

Item 29.



184

Item 29.



185

Item 29.



186

Item 29.



187

Item 29.



188

Item 29.



189

Item 29.



190

Item 29.



191

Item 29.



192

Item 29.



193

Item 29.



194

Item 29.



195

Item 29.



196

Item 29.



197

Item 29.



198

Item 29.



199

Item 29.



200

Item 29.



201

Item 29.



202

Item 29.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 2/20/23 MEETING



203

Item 29.



204

Item 29.



205

Item 29.



206

Item 29.



207

Item 29.



208

Item 29.



209

Item 29.



210

Item 29.



211

Item 29.



212

Item 29.



213

Item 29.



214

Item 29.



215

Item 29.



216

Item 29.



217

Item 29.



218

Item 29.



219

Item 29.



220

Item 29.



221

Item 29.



222

Item 29.



223

Item 29.



224

Item 29.



225

Item 29.



226

Item 29.



227

Item 29.



228

Item 29.



229

Item 29.



230

Item 29.



231

Item 29.



232

Item 29.



233

Item 29.



234

Item 29.



235

Item 29.



236

Item 29.



237

Item 29.



238

Item 29.



239

Item 29.



240

Item 29.



241

Item 29.



242

Item 29.



243

Item 29.



244

Item 29.



245

Item 29.



246

Item 29.



247

Item 29.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of February 6, 2023
	230206MINUTES

	Item 2.	Special meeting of January 30, 2023
	230130MINUTES

	Item 3.	Tobacco Violation-Bani's
	1a-Order Assessing Penalty, 2nd Violation - Civil Penalty
	1b-Order Assessing Penalty, 2nd Violation - Suspension
	2-Notice of Hearing, 2nd Violation

	Item 4.	Ord. 3023-Rezoning Midway Business Park
	1. - CC staff Report on midway park zoning amendment 1-17-2022
	2. - ZoningLocationMap (1)
	3. - Lots where assisted living facility is proposed
	4. - Request Letter
	5. - 1994 Zoning Agreement
	6. - New Zoning Agreement.signed.12.7.22
	7_Ord-Rezoning-Midway Business Park RZ22-003

	Item 5.	Ord. 3024-Rezoning Midway 2nd Addition
	1. - CC staff Report on Rezone of Lovejoy Cul-de-sac
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Ord-Rezoning-Lovejoy Cul-de-sac RZ22-005

	Item 6.	Standing Committee Minutes - 02/06/23
	02-06-23 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 7.	Standing Committee Minutes - 01/30/23
	01-30-23 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 8.	Legislator Work Session Minutes-02/03/23
	Minutes-02-03-23 Joint Meeting with Legislators

	Item 9.	Proclamation Request - Jamaica Day
	2023-02-14_ProclamationsForCouncilApproval
	2023-02-24_Jamaica_Day

	Item 10.	Boards & Commissions-Appointments
	2023-02-13_BADJ_ManginReappoint

	Item 11.	Annual Report of Boards and Commissions
	1. Annual Report Council memo for 2022
	2. P  Z Annual Summary 2022
	3. P  Z Attendance Chart 2022
	4. BOA Annual Report 2022
	5. HPC Annual Summary 2022
	6. Board of Rental Housing Appeals 2022
	7.  Housing Commission Annual Report 2022
	8. Bike and Ped Annual Report 2022
	9. 2022 permit summary

	Item 12.	Tobacco Permits 02202023
	02202023 Tobacco Applications

	Item 13.	Liquor Beer 2-20-2023
	2-20-23 Retail alcohol

	Item 15.	Bonds-Amending Resolution No. 22,901
	Cover Memo
	1. Cedar Falls (185) - Amending Authorizing Resolution 2022 GO CLN (02161971x7F7E1)
	2. Cedar Falls (190) - 2022 GO NOTES Supplement (02142664-5x7F7E1)

	Item 16.	Fireworks
	Fireworks recommendation  UPDATED

	Item 17.	HOME-ARP funds and Annual Action Plan for their use
	HOME-ARP 2-13-23

	Item 18.	Annual CLG Report approval for Historic Preservation Commission
	1. Memo to Council - 2022 CLG annual report
	2. 2022 CLG report
	3. 2023 - Work Plan
	4. Annual report certification signature doc
	5. HPC Annual Summary 2022
	6. HPC walking tour 11x17 poster
	7. HPC walking tour trifold brochure
	8. File 1
	9. File 2

	Item 19.	RIVA Amendment to Subrecipient Agreement
	1. amendment request
	2. RIVA request
	3. amendment 1 RIVA

	Item 20.	CDBG-CV2-CARES ACT-Amendment #3
	1. amendment request for state

	Item 21.	Main Street Reconstruction - Temporary Easement
	1. ROW Acquisition Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	Parcel 301_Temp_Easement

	Item 22.	Main Street Reconstruction - Warranty Deeds
	1. Warranty Deed Memo - Main Street Reconstruction (3)
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	Parcel 29,30,41,45,156,&205 (2018 Main Street) - Copy

	Item 23.	Low Bid Various Intersection Improvements
	1. Memo Low Bid - Various Intersection Improvements
	Bid Tab - Various Intersection Improvements

	Item 24.	Low Bid- Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project
	1. Memo Low Bid - Oak Park Sanitary 2023
	2. - 2023Oak Park Bid Tabulation

	Item 25.	Set PH-2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
	1. Memo PSE - 2023 Sewer Rehab
	3. Engineer's Estimate 2023 Sewer Rehab

	Item 26.	Set PH-2023 Street Construction
	1. Memo PSE - 2023 Street Construction
	2. Estimate

	Item 27.	Set PH-North Cedar Heights  Reconstruction
	1. Memo PSE - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1
	2. Estimate

	Item 28.	Set PH - McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 02-20-23
	2_Res Setting Date of Public Hearing - McDonald Construction, LLC

	Item 29.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 022023
	2 Council Invoices 022023

	Bottom

